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President's Report 2001-2002 

Fellow Kiwanians, it is truly remarkable how fleeting a year is .... I will suggest that fact is more due to 
my year as your President, than my advancing age. It's hard to believe it was only a year ago I stood 
before you as your Incoming President. It has indeed been an honor for me to have had the privilege of 
serving this great club. Hopeful1y, I have helped, in some small way, to build upon our proud history of 
85 years. 

As I've reflected upon my year, there are a lot of memories, some sweeter than others. Given my brief 
allotment of time today, I will only touch on a few of the highlights. First, what really stands out for me is 
the great resource we have in the quality of people who comprise our membership - 235 members, a board 
of directors of 14,26 committee chairs, 26 vice-chairs, a 'venerable' Past Presidents Council, and the rest 
of our membership who work on the committees - an utterly fantastic, energetic, motivating resource that 
gives life to everything this great club achieves. 

This dynamic human energy is reflected in all of the new members who've joined us in the last year. I 
know some of us have wondered how can we continue the traditions we've established. I can assure you 
we're in good hands with all of the great new members who've joined us in recent years - they offer us 
the promise of new energy, new ideas, and new expertise that combine to produce a magical on-going 
renewal process in our club. To all of you who have made my year such a rewarding and satisfying 
experience, I extend my deep gratitude and thanks. 

Our weekly Friday luncheon meetings have been ajoy for me; the defmitive 'high' for me each week. 
Some of the standouts for me include our luncheon with the International President, Brian Cunat last 
November, our over-flowing Renegades event that Bill Sierkerski did such a great job on, the Legion of 
Honor luncheon and the privilege I had of hosting our regular Friday luncheon for about 800 people at the 
District Convention - an event that Wayne Beaudoin and his committee conducted superbly. 

I have some bittersweet memories as well. A year ago, I was so pleased to have my mother and father 
from Nova Scotia here as my guests for Turnover. As you know, my dad passed away in early January due 
to a severe stroke during the Christmas holidays. This was a major blow but countering the sense of 
personal loss was the terrific support I received from this club. The cards, the notes, e-mails and calls from 
so many of you in this room were comforting, encouraging and very helpful in sustaining my spirits. My 
sincere gratitude to you for both taking the time and making the effort to bolster me during this time. It 
definitely helped! 

Then we encountered another loss with the departure of our two office staff in February, just before our 
Club's Annual Meeting. - - - but life does unfold in mysterious ways. Entering the void on a temporary 
basis came Joyce Stewart and then magically, the opportunity arose for Rita Harper to rejoin us - to come 
home so to speak. Oh, my year has been blessed - these two special individuals have helped us to 
complete the office transformation initiated by our Board committee. And we now have, in my view, the 
best office staff and support structure I've seen during my time on the Board of Directors. I believe we've 
put in place the operational foundation that will and is allowing this club, and our committees, to perform 
successfully into the future. Fellow members, please give your support, understanding and appreciation to 
Rita and Joyce - the heart and dynamic engine supporting what our membership and most of our 
committees undertake. Rita, to put a spin on Past President Wayne Beaudoin's famous words, you picked 
a fine time to leave me .... ; but you actually picked a fine time to rejoin me and us. Thank you. 

Continued ... page 2 

_ Joanna Muckle "SERVING THE CHILDREN OF THE WORLD" 
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Well, what is our report card like on community service during the last year. In a word, we've done great. 
Just a couple of examples: 

Through our Emergent Literacy Project, we've distributed close to 260,000 copies of our Precious 
Minds video. Think of the impact. In its total scope, you could probably conservatively measure the 
value of this community service project at $ 500,000+ 

In May, we contributed $ 10,000 in seed money to the Passing the Torch Campaign. A Memorandum 
of Understanding has been signed between our Club and the Museum that reflects the benefits and 
plans for both parties in this collaboration - a key component of which clearly identifies our interests 
in developing a youth education program - Children Priority One. A dynamic, energized committee is 
being lead by Allan Castledine. Already, they have secured in excess of $ 80,000 in gifts and pledges 
for this project! I'm confident this project will be a huge success and one that will make us all very 
proud as the new War Museum facility becomes a reality. 

Our sponsored youth programs - what an investment we're making here! Our 211 Air Cadet 
Squadron, the Governor General's Foot Guards, our 4 key clubs, our 2 circle K clubs, our Atkion 
Club. As newer member Ross McIntyre said so eloquently at one of our club's committee meetings 
this past month, our work here is truly Children-Priority One, as we support and encourage the 
development of skills for these young leaders - our future leaders and in some cases, our future 
members. Personally, I place a community service value of $ 250,000+ on the work we do with these 
sponsored youth clubs each year. 

Couple these aforementioned programs with our other fundraising activities and programs: the 
Partners in Caring initiative, our Bon Appetit Auction, the Duck Race, Dream of a Lifetime, our Golf 
Tournament, our Medical Foundation, our seniors and hands-on committee and more - and we've 
probably had a community service impact this past year valued in the $ 1,000,000 range. Not 
bad, for a difficult year. 

I'd be terribly remiss if I didn't note that lowe a huge debt of gratitude and love to my wife Anna, and my 
two children, Matthew and Carolyn, for being so understanding, so supportive - and yes I did test the 
limits of reasonability on a few occasions. Thank you dear for being there for me. 

And thank you again my fellow members for having given me this great honor and privilege of being your 
President for a year. It's a year that will be a cherished highlight for me during my continuing life's 
journey. 

In closing, J'd like to share a Wise Old Saying (a brief story) 
One evening an old Cherokee gazed at his grandson and recognized that the boy had a battle going on 
inside himself. He said, "My son, the battle within you is between two wolves. " 
"One lvolf is evil: anger, sorrow, regret, greed, arrogance, self-pity, guilt, resentment, inferiority, lies, 
false pride, superiority, and ego. " 
"The other wolfis good.· joy, peace, love, hope, serenity, humility, kindness, benevolence, empathy, 
generosity, truth, compassion, andfaith. " 
The grandson thought about it for a minute and then asked his grandfather, "Which wolf wins?" 
The old Cherokee replied, "The one youfeed " 

This is a wonderful story that describes how I believe life, business and our Kiwanis service club activities 
should be approached. 

Yours in Kiwanis, 

Richard Munro, President 2001-2002 



ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTT A W A 
for the fiscal year 2000-2001 

Chateau Laurier Hotel- Friday, March 1,2002 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Wing, Ron 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2000-2001 March 1,2002 

PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

President Richard stated that he was reporting on behalf of Immediate Past President Ed Healey 
who was out of the country. He stated that financially our club was in a good position. He 
regretted that problems have come up in the office but said that the Board handled it the best they 
could and trusted that with the patience and understanding of the members this problem would 
soon be resolved. 

He then called on Derek Finley who reported that the sales of the Precious Minds video has just 
taken off way beyond their expectations. That and the Shaken Baby video \vere not meant to be 
fundraisers but have turned into one of the largest fundraisers in our club with sales across 
Canada and now with u.S. distribution in many states. It is a tremendous success story and he 
asked the Young Children Priority One committee members to stand and be recognized. 

President Richard declared this to be the Annual General Meeting of the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa and announced that Past President Wayne Beaudoin would be acting as parliamentarian 
for the meeting. 

President Richard called for a motion to adopt the report of the Standing Committees which are 
found in the Annual report from page 5 to page 38. It was MOVED by John O'Neil and 
SECONDED by Peter Charboneau. CARRIED 

President Richard called for a motion to approve the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting 
of January 5,2001, found on pages 5-7 in the Annual Report. It was MOVED by Susan Menzies 
and SECONDED by George Perrin. CARRIED 

President Richard called on Board of Director member Bruce Brooks to report on the 2000-2001 
Audited Financial Statements on behalf of Honorary Treasurer Michael Findlay. 
Bruce Brooks explained that this meeting ratify the expenses over budget for the following 
accounts: Annual Audit, Directors and Officers' Liability Insurance, Postage, Printing 
Stationery and Office Supplies, Programme Committee, Roster, and International Convention. 
The Audited Financial Statements were MOVED by Bruce Brooks and SECONDED by Ian 
Hendry. CARRIED 

President-Elect Rick Barrigar presented the Audited Financial Statements for the Khvanis Club 
of Otta,va Medical Foundation. It was MOVED by Rick and SECONDED by Art Moody that 
the statements be adopted. CARRIED 

President Richard expressed thanks to KPMG who once again copied, collated and stapled our 
Annual Reports at no charge. 

President Richard asked Bruce Brooks to present the Proposed Budgets for the year 2001-2002. 
It was MOVED by Bruce Brooks and SECONDED by Bob Vergette that \ve approve the budgets 
as presented. CARRIED 
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Annual General Meeting - Page 2 

President Richard asked for a motion to approve KPMG as our club auditors for the General, 
Community Services, KCO, and Medical Foundation. It was MOVED by Les Morin and 
SECONDED by David Fair. CARRIED 

QUESTION & ANSWER PERIOD 
Eddy Cook congratulated Peter Charboneau and the Program Committee for the terrific programs 
held so far this year. 

Peter Charboneau asked if there are any provisions for the uncollected dues or fees which appear 
in the Financial Statements and Bruce Brooks replied that most have been collected but he did 
not feel we would be successful in collecting the balance and will just have to move forward. 

Lorne Usher suggested that a frozen formula be provided for membership fees and that in an 
attempt to attract younger members (under 35 years of age) we give them a break such as cutting 
their fees in half for the first year to encourage bringing younger members into the club. 
President Richard said these suggestions would be brought to the Board for discussion. 

Guy Bourbonniere asked about the office staffing issue - Rita Harper may have left her position 
because of overwork and because of lack of staff, much work had been left undone and now 
Joanna Muckle and Laura Johnson have left for the same reason - are we the problem or are they 
the problem? President Richard replied that we allowed things to evolve over the years and that 
we are the problem. We have issues which will be seriously addressed and Bill Cowie is 
accepting applications for both positions in the office. Whoever we bring in will have to be 
assured that they will not put in more time in the office than is normally expected. 

Wayne Beaudoin asked where we would be if we had not had the two video projects - we have 
never replaced the TV Auction and that maybe we should look at reviving this project since 
besides making n10ney for the club, it provided a great activity for club members. He said we 
need more club activity to get the members involved. 

President Richard said that the Board is looking at an activity project and one such project was 
the Oktoberfest which may be in jeopardy since Lansdowne Park will no longer allow outside 
catering (food and bar) in any of their facilities. 

Marcia Saipe stated that President Richard has been 5 months in the chair and that has been 5 
months of challenges and changes and that we appreciate the work he and the Board has put into 
the club as volunteer Board members. She said she takes her hat off to President Richard and the 
Board for their courage and leadership - she said there have been bumps and grinds before during 
our 85 years and that she feels confident that we will get over this bump. Eddy Cook stated that 
our office administration has been stretched in all directions leaving us weaker and more 
vulnerable - we should worry about cleaning our house and put it back together to start flowing 
again as it should. 

Brian Kloppenburg announced that the Duck Race launch \vould be held at the Rideau Carleton 
Raceway on March 22nd. 
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Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Semi-Annual Business Meeting - MINUTES 
Friday, July 12/02 Chateau Laurier, Laurier Room 

President Richard called the meeting to order explaining that "this to be a special business meeting of the club, 
notice of which was in our Kiwanis Newsletter of July 12 " 
President Richard introduced Frank Hegyi, Past District Governor of the Pacific Northwest District, as 
parliamentarian for the meeting. 

President Richard explained that this meeting is an opportunity for members to better understand the workings 
of our club and we hope will provide an open forum for discussion. Any issues that are presented will be 
brought forward at a future board meeting for discussion and action as appropriate. In order to provide as 
much time as possible for our Open Membership Discussion, the Board decided not to put on further 
presentations. 

He explained that any issues or concerns presented will be discussed at future Board meetings with action taken 
as is appropriate. 

President's Report: 
President Richard advised the members that there were six items to address: 
1. Office Equipment and Environment: The office has now been converted to a PC computer system and 
with the addition of new workstations, the office is now more efficient operationally. Also, the cost for the 
project came in below budget 

2. Staffing: Rita Harper has returned to the office as well as with the new addition of Joyce Stewart and 
together they have provided stability for both members and committees alike. The feedback from the members 
has been positive and supportive. 

3. Transition for new President: President-Designate Rick Barrigar will begin the transition to his new role as 
President. A President's Training Session, as well as a meeting with the Past Presidents Council will provide 
valuable input for Rick in his role as President. Committee Chairs will be provided Committee Procedure 
Binders in an effort to ensure continuity within the committees, as well as provide some guidance and training 
or the new positions of responsibility. 

4. Kiwanis EC&C District Convention: 
The Convention is quickly approaching and since the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa is the host, it would be most 
prudent to have good representation of our members. The President's Luncheon will be held at the Congress 
Centre on August 2nd

, with an earlier start time (12:00 noon), and the members were encouraged to come out. 

5. Community Service: 
The Club will be developing a philosophy focusing on the types of Community Service where we should be 
investing our time and financial resources. Expect to hear more on this subject as we go forward. 

6. Legacy for Life 
The fund has accumulated $250,000 in assets and legacy gifts. It has been recommended that the Community 
of Foundation of Ottawa be designated to manage the funds. 

Honorary Treasurer's Report 
Bruce Brooks informed the members that the financial health of the club is in excellent shape. \X1hile the 
original budget indicated a surplus of $35,000, it is most likely that the surplus will be below budget, in the area 
of $10,000 - $30,000 range. The challenge for next year will be find new fundraising sources to replace the 
Video sales revenue stream this year of $119,000. 
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Strategic Planning Report 
In President Designate fuck Barrigar's absence, President fuchard reported that work has begun and that a 
Vision Statement has been prepared. President fuchard introduced the Vision. 

ITEMS FOR OPEN MEMBERSHIP DISCUSSION: 
President fuchard introduced this portion of the 1v1eeting to the members. 

a. Number of club committees 
* need to reduce the number of committees since the members are feeling stretched 
* \X1ays & 1\leans may be combined with another committee 

b. Peter Charboneau, Chair of the Programme Committee advised: On August 18-19th the members at the 
meeting discussed at length ideas for this meeting. Five points were raised for your consideration: 

* Currently 62 Senior 1\1embers - what impact does it have on lunch 
* Dress Code - needs to be reviewed & enforced by the Board - its not being followed 
* Survey \vas completed by new members. Need a small questionnaire for each member and to do 

an interview of those (exit interviews) who have left the club to determine the reasons etc. 
* Chateau Laurier - package is expensive. \X1hy Friday meetings? We should consider whether we 
should meet on Friday's at lunch and maybe we should look at meeting twice a month or even once a 
month 
* Change is Constant - Programme Committee feels our club does not welcome change. 
Le. In November, President Richard suggested we cancel the August meetings. Vote was 19-2 to 

cancel 4 August meetings and it \vas approved at the Board. No presentation was made to the 
members. Some members apparently didn't like the decision and had the Board reverse the 
decision. It is therefore the perception that the Club is not receptive to change. 

President Richard thanked Peter for his work with the committee on this subject. Larry Haffner noted that 
David Fair held a feedback session and that one of the issues was credit for non Attendance. President Richard 
explained 21 of 65 new members since 1995 were a part of this feedback session. He stressed that new members 
need mentors to continue their involvement. 

We are not a "family friendly" club and Dawn 1\lorewood will be looking into ways to address this issue. For the 
new members, it might be considered that they can roam through several committees so they get a feel for the 
club, rather than assigning them to one or two specific committees. 

Prepaid luncheons costs will be looked into and a report will hopefully be available for the AGM-
specifically dealing with the time and costs. If we move to 2 meetings a month, that of course would help reduce 
costs. Larry Haffner stated he pays quarterly even though he is a Senior. He feels encouraged to attend since he 
has prepaid. 

\Vayne French is a Senior 1\lember because he wasn't able to come out on Fridays. He feels the 
Chateau Laurier is costly. He \vould like to see breakfast meetings in the summer. He doesn't agree that Survey 
responses are necessarily good, he \vould much rather have individual discussions. 

\vayne indicated that he feels the Dress Code needs to be reviewed. Should have had shirt & tie for 
today's meeting. The Duck Race Committee only had 6 active members this year. Need more members for such 
a major fundraiser. \\'ayne also stated that he feels membership will deteriorate if we don't look at these issues. 
President Richard questioned \vhat \X1ayne felt about 4 meetings a month. \X1ayne stated he was not in agreement 
with 4 meetings per month, he feels 2 meetings per month and one per month during the summer is sufficient. 
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Kent \X'ilkinson will accept the decision of the members, however there are conditions. Another time or 

another location. Personally he feels semi-monthly meetings would loose the cohesiveness of the Club. He then 
,lsked those present. To raise their hands if they wanted to meet every Friday. Many hands were raised. 

Ross Christensen stated we have a chance to lose the objective of what the Club is here to do. 
Breakfast meetings would not be possible with children as with some evening meetings. The Committees are 
formed and most of the work falls on the Shoulders of the Chairs. We need better formation of members on 
committees. \X'ith 250 members - how many are here today? What image are we giving to the Public. 

Peter Patafie who has been a member for 22 years feels it would be wrong to leave the Chateau as we 
would lose our clout and prestige. He feels we are not having fun anymore. Also, Peter felt that we need to be 
more active with our own members, that we should be involved in their lives more - when's the last time you 
helped a member. The mo\'e to a mixed group was a positive move. Peter felt we could better use our financial 
resources with better research. Also, the Club needs to have a greater profile in the City of Ottawa, and we need 
to recruit new blood into the Club. He feels that the Duck Race fundraiser has worn out for our membership 
and we need to find a new fundraiser. 1\1embers have limited time so fundraisers have to take that into 
consideration. When we make changes we need to move cautiously. 

Matt McGrath addressed the issue of meeting times and location. For those who miss the meetings, the 
club will still be meeting, so eventually \\Then the member is able to attend, they will be able to fit in again. If the 
meeting schedule changes, it could be that the meeting date does not fit into their available time and therefore 
they will not be seen for some time. The Chateau cost is comparable to most locations, but if we move, we will 
not have the same prestige associated with the Chateau and the ability to draw quality speakers would be 
impacted. The club needs to be careful that committee members don't vote and make changes without giving all 
members the opportunity to participate in the discussion and final decision making process. 

Wayne Beaudoin felt it was important to maintain the weekly meetings. It is impressive that we have 
been meeting since 1917, and we deserve a prestigious location! 

John Callan noted that this year we will have $330,000 in assets this year. Five years ago, all the funds 
collected were spent. Picking up on a theme from Derek Finley, we need to have a Kiwanis project that we can 
put a stamp on. John also noted he was pleased YCPO is our mission statement committee. On a final note, we 
have approximately 120 active members and if we reduce our committee structure to 12, then each committee 
\vould be assigned 10 members which is a good size to work with. President Richard stated we need to come up 
with a model for YCPO. \\1e have no current fundraiser. 

George Perrin told the members that he looked forward to the Friday meetings and if you don't go, 
you'd definitely miss it. He also noted that some meetings are better than others. 

Shirley Tomblin felt that as a premier club we should not leave the Chateau. What other venue could 
accommodate our different luncheons? The Chateau has been great. Shirley felt there were too many Senior 
members and that we shouldn't move from the Chateau, nor change from our weekly meetings. 

Harold Geller felt that it \vas important to have some leadership - when to meet, how often, what is the 
Club focus. He commended the executive and stated that \ve should let the leaders lead! 

\X'ill Thompson inquired as to what was the latest on CHEO and that there was no mention of our 
name and involvement in the Cardiac Unit. President Richard advised a letter is being prepared to go to CHEO. 
He understood why the media would forget the contribution of Kiwanis, however, he didn't understand why 
CHEO hadn't mentioned l<iwanis. 

President Richard stated these are not easy issues and unfortunately many members were not present 
today, however, it is the intent to have another Round Table meeting so that members could have another 
opportunity to voice their opinions and recommendations. 
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Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Round Table - Round Two - MINUTES 
Friday, July 26102 Chateau Laurier, Drawing Room 

President Richard called the Order and stated "I declare this to be a continuation of our Semi-Annual 
business meeting of the club, notice of which was in our Kiwanis Newsletter of July 19th

". 

President Richard recognized Frank Hegyi, Past District Governor of the Pacific Northwest District, who 
acted as parliamentarian for the meeting. 

President's Report 
President Richard ad\'ised the members that proposals currently received reflect 4-5 major requests. The 
Club needs to determine what major projects they want to support and he solicited the input of the 
members. President Richard went on to say that he feels we should be committing to a long-term project to 
keep the Club engaged, i.e. Passing the Torch. President Richard also expressed kudos to the committee for 
committing $60,000 to the Passing the Torch campaign. 

President Richard then opened the discussion to the members: 

Tom Pullen indicated there was a great discussion at Ste. Marie. He also inquired as to whether there 
was a vote taken to change to twice a month meetings since he feels it would be the demise of the Club if 
the meetings ,\'ere changed to twice monthly. Tom also felt that the low turnout for a speaker is not 
necessarily indicative of a problem. President Richard informed Tom and the members that there has not 
been a vote nor has any final decision been presented to the Board of Directors. 

Matt McGrath re-emphasized the need to maintain weekly meetings. The significance of changing the 
meeting schedule could create its own set of issues, for example, if a member missed one of the newly 
scheduled meetings, the member could in fact wait a month before the schedule rotation came about. Also, 
it would be difficult to keep members informed as to the meeting schedule, is it this week, or next week etc. 

Rick Barrigar indicated that he was in favour of bi-monthly meetings (every two weeks). He feels that 
embers who left the Club in the past two years, left due to financial reasons. If the meeting schedule was 
changed, the cost would be reduced. Rick also noted that just as the Board meetings are scheduled for the 
1st and 3rd of the month, there should be no reason to assume that a meeting schedule for the 1st 
and 3rd Fridays would be difficult for the members to remember. Also, Rick noted that other clubs meet 
twice a month and they are still standing strong. 

\X'ayne Beaudoin felt we should make commitments that are morelong-term, but in order to make these 
types of commitments, the Club will need more time to do the task properly. 

Doug \Xlilson stated as a new member he always 'wanted to join this Club for Fridays at the Chateau at 12:00 
p.m.. Also, 52 weeks is not enough time for him to get to meet everyone. Costs should be prioritized as 
#1. Doug ended his comments by stating he was delighted to be a member of our club. 

Bob Kingham \vas concerned that it cut into the fellowship time when the meeting started at 12:55 p.m. 
instead of 1 :OOp.m.! Also, we need to address how we ca conduct Kiwanis business. 

Peter Patafie passionately shared that he really enjoys the Club. President Richard is representing the Club 
and we should support him. He feels hurt there are only 60 people here today. He commented that if they 
can't come out more than 2 times a year, what are they doing here? If we have a long-term project, maybe 
they 'would be more apt to come to the meetings. 
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President Richard stated with more Senior Members there is a shift to less people attending meetings. Exit 
interviews would show that time and money were issues. 

Susan Menzies stated that most of the work is done at the committee level and the work will continue to get 
done, regardless of whether the members attend the luncheons. 

President Richard advised that the issue of those who can't make Fridays is that they are still paying their 
fees and that, it appears, is the crux of the problem. That they have to pay when not in attendance. 

Paul Kane noted the }\lembership Committee research supports that time and cost are the two prominent 
issues for Members. The reason people join is because of the work they can do in the community by being 
part of Kiwanis. Exit interviews support the claim that time constraints and cost are the main issues. If we 
can reduce the cost by reducing the number of Club T\leetings, then that may be the best way to go. 

Frank Hegyi has a long history with Kiwanis. He has been a member for over 30 years and was in charge of 
40 clubs and served as District Governor in the Pacific Northwest District. The lo\\' attendance issue has 
never been solved by changing meeting schedules or locations in his experience. However, he has noted 
that when Clubs did change their location, they reduced their attendance by 50% so he provided a word of 
caution when the decision is made to fix the problem. Frank suggested that if prepaid luncheons are the 
issue that should be looked at first. There is the ability to use the internet to confirm attendance of course. 

Iackie Holzman felt it was critical that the issues were discussed. The Chateau Laurier is the only one who 
can accommodate our special needs on a weekly basis so we should not consider re-Iocating. Also, perhaps 
we need to look at \\That we do on Fridays. Today's lunch was better since we didn't have a speaker talk to 
us and there is more interaction between members. Do we need to have a speaker weekly or should we be 
looking at a speaker every 2 weeks? Jackie felt we shouldn't get hung up on numbers, rather than 
recognize what impact we have in our community. Our acti"ities determine our success not our numbers. 
Also, many of our members are retired and it is an effort for them to come downtown regularly. The 
pendulum is swinging & group activities are not what they used to be. 

David Daubney suggested a compromise. We should continue to meet every week at the Chateau but 
change for the summer months. There are 40 on LOA, so perhaps changing to every two weeks in the 
summer would be viable. 

Jeremy Moore noted that I<iwanis is not just lunch at the Chateau. The committee work takes up a lot of 
time and my valuable contribution is my attendance at committee meetings. There are many "unsung 
heroes" on committees - don't underestimate their value and commitment to I<iwanis. It is important not 
to put too much emphasis on Luncheon attendance at the expense of their committee work. 

T\1ike Moore felt it was important to identify the problem exactly! It appears "we're all over the map in trying 
to determine the problem. Exactly what is it? First the decision should be made to stay, and then 
eliminate the obvious and see what's left. There is a significant tradition in the Club and it's important we 
don't lose it. If we change our structure - \ve're changing what and who we are! T\like felt change is good, 
but only if it's for the better. \Ve don't need to change tradition. 

Ross Christensen felt \ve have raised the bar. If you re\Tiew our objects, being altruistic is only one of six. 
Acting together as an institution is also important. Friday is more than a social event. It is important that 
we don't underestimate that we discuss when we get together each week. The cost is a factor but it's a 
matter our priorities. 
President Richard told the members that Clive \v'oolley mentioned that because we meet at the Chateau, we 
get quality as well as it is impressive to our guests. President Richard noted that we need to develop a 
model for our funding to the community. He thanked the members for sharing their thoughts. It reflects 
the Spirit, and of course, the laughter is just as important. The meeting was adjourned. 
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AKtion Club 2001-02 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa. 

This club is designed to help the mentally and physically disadvantaged to 

achieve their full potential. 

During the past year the AKtion Club participated or was involved in the 

following projects: 

Bi-weekly dinner meetings held at the Royal Canadian Legion at 330 

Kent Street. 
Held annual election in January. 
Attended 67's game during February. 
Attended annual picnic in conjunction with OCAPPD at Vincent Massey 

Park. 
Many members attended a Renegades game during July. 
Held a barbecue for the full membership at the Royal Canadian Legion. 

_ Held an annual Christmas party in December. 
The executive of the AKtion Club attended two Kiwanis luncheons 

during the year. 
The Ottawa club has been invited to attend meetings in North Bay and 

Rochester, NY. These are planned for 2003. 

Thanks to the sponsoring Kiwanis Clubs for their help and assistance during 

the past year. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Harold Moore 
Chair 



BON APPETIT! OTTAWA-SILENT AUCTION 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Our 4th edition of the Bon Appetit! Silent Auction was held on Tuesday May 9, 2002 at 
the Aberdeen Pavilion of Lansdowne Park. 

This year's event proved to be extremely successful, raising $40,000 in just over 3 hours. 
Once again, however, it was very difficult to get the items in on time but a last nlinute 
plea from the committee did prove to be successful. Although it was evidently more 
difficult this year to solicit items for the auction with more charitable competition and 
silent auctions being held throughout the city, the items that we did get proved to be in 
demand and they proved to be profitable. As each year passes the Silent Auction at this 
event is becoming more and more well known for its items and value per item. It is with 
this in mind that we must strive each year to try a bit harder to get better and better items 
so that the event will net higher and higher profits. Attendees at this event not only look 
forward to tasting and sampling foods from about 100 Restaurants but also look forward 
to the fun and participation at the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa's Silent Auction. 

The small comn1ittee performed extremely well and I thank everyone for their efforts in 
making this year's event another success. I would also like to thank many people from 
outside our committee who contributed to the efforts of the evening success. A special 
thank you to Elaine Melamed and Lana Tanner and to the 12 Associates from the Staples 
Business Depots who helped with security and teardown. 

Although this year's event yielded a smaller Gross Dollars compared to 2001, the 
decision not to use a tent allowed us to net more dollars for our Club's Community 
Services Account. This year's net proceeds reached $36,083. 

It was indeed a pleasure to chair this year's committee and I look forward to co-chairing 
the committee in 2003 with Sheri Ferahani. 

Vice Chair: 
Vice President: 
Director: 

Committee: 

Elliot Melamed 
Rick Barrigar 
Derek Finley 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Stephen Tanner, Chair 

Sheri Farahani, Harold Geller; Steve Georgopolous, Tom Spence, 
Bob St. Louis, Tom Beveridge, Jamie Johnson, Kevin Keohane, 
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CADET COMMITTEE 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The past year was a busy year for both our cadet corps - the 211 Ottawa Kiwanis Royal 
Canadian Air Cadet Squadron and the Governor General's Foot Guards Army Cadet. 

Both units participated jointly for the first time at the 2001 Remembrance Day luncheon. 

A combined Cadet Luncheon was held in May 2002 and Sgt. Jason KraIt, a former air cadet and 
now serving with the G.G.F.G. and a member of the Ottawa Renegades, was an inspirational 
speaker. The units provided a joint band that provided the entertainment at the luncheon 

Bob Vergette and Sandra Presley, the two vice-chairs, and their committee members are to be 
congratulated for their dedication. 

The past year had its difficulties for the air cadet committee as they struggled with the 
restructuring of the squadron resulting in the replacement of Captain Michael MacKinnon as 
Commanding Officer with Captain David Burniston 

The army cadets served with distinction, and were recognized as the top army cadet unit in 
Ontario. "Up the Guards". 

The club can be proud of the young men and women who serve in our sponsored cadet corps. 

Vice-Chair Bob Vergette ( Army Cadets) 
Vice-Chair Sandra Presley ( Air Cadets) 
Vice-President Janet Dodds 
Director Mike St Louis 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Ken Miller 
Chair 



211 AIR CADETS SQUADRON 

This past year saw a number of changes being made resulting in an overhaul of the Squadron. 
Captain Michael MacKinnon resigned and was replaced by Captain David Burniston. A number 
of other staff changes were also undertaken. 

Mike Flint, Bryan Healey, David Burniston and Ken Miller met over this past summer and 
started planning the restructuring of the squadron. 

A parents support group was started in September and will be an integral partner \vith the 
sponsoring committee as a resource group. Mrs. Jaquie Meelker, a mother of three cadets, IS 

heading up this group. 

Over the past year the cadets were involved in numerous activities: 

• October 2001 Battle of Britain Parade 
• November 2001 Kiwanis Remembrance Day Luncheon 
• November 2001 Remembrance Day Parade in Westboro 
• December 2001 Cadet Christmas Party 
• April 2002 Battle of the Atlantic Parade 

May 2002 Bush Weekend 
• May 2002 Kiwanis Cadet Luncheon 
• May 2002 Mess Dinner 
• May 2002 Annual Inspection 

Numerous cadets attended summer camps including, Senior Leaders, Glider and Power Pilot. 

Despite organizational problems, the cadets worked hard and displayed a determination to 
succeed. 

Vice-Chair Sandra Presley 
Director Mike St Louis 
League Representative Bill Slaughter 

Respectfully submitted 

Ken Miller 
Cadet Chair 

Vice-President Janet Dodds 
Treasurer Guy Bourbonniere 
Secretary Pat McGarry 
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GOVERNOR GENERAL'S FOOT GUARDS ARMY CADETS 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This is the second year of sponsorship for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa. Once again the 
2784 GGFG's led the way. 

I mentioned last year that this committee was very unique because of its make-up. 
Tom Moore did an outstanding job on the financial, which blended the Kiwanis Club and 
Parents Committee's statements. Steve Usher led the parents committee and continues to 
be a major contributor to the cadets. 

There are approximately 95 Cadets, Officers, and NCO's who continue to have strong 
leadership from their commanding officer Major Robert Barrette CD. Once again the 
cadets were exceptionally busy and the following are a few of the events: 

* 

* 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 

November 7,2001 - participated in Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Remembrance Day 
Luncheon. 
November 21,2001 - Colonel Clary Award $1,000.00 was presented to the best Cadets 
Corp in Ontario 
November 27,2001 - Cadets participated in security at the Santa Toy Parade 
February 2, 2002 - Cadet Air Rifle Team placed first in the area shoot 
February 22 to 24th

, 2002 - Guards winter survival training 
May 10th -1 t\ 2002 - Cadets placed first in the provincial competition at CFB Borden 
May 29, 2002 - Annual inspection Colonel R.J. Hnatyshyn CD, QC former 
Governor General and honourary Colonel and the regiment was the reviewing 
Officer. 
May 31, 2002 - Cadets band and flag party participated in Kiwanis annual 
luncheon 

These are only a few of the events. They parade every Wednesday at the Cartier Drill 
Hall at 6:30 p.m. 

I wish incoming Chairman Buck Madden all the best in the coming year and thanks to the 
Board of Directors for your continued support. 

Vice-Chair Buck Madden 
Secretary Paul Nemeth 
Treasurer Tom Moore (Sage Club) 
Director Mike St. Louis 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bob V Chair 

C.O. Major Robert Barrette 
League Representative Joe Pelisek 
Vice-President Janet Dodds 

Chairman Parents' Committee Steve Usher Co-Sponsor Patrick McGuire 
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EASTERN CANADA and the CARIBBEAN DISTRICT 2002 CONVENTION 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The 85th Annual Eastern Canada and the Caribbean Convention was held in Ottawa Aug 
1 st_3 rd

, 2002. It was preceded by 3 days of pre-convention training sessions and various 
other meetings, the arrangement for which the committee was also responsible. 

By most accounts the convention was an outstanding success. There were a total of 679 
registrations - 522 Kiwanians, 151 partners and 6 youth. This was pretty well in line with 
previous years, although our expectations were somewhat higher considering the 
destination was the nations' capital. 

The convention kicked off on the Thursday evening with the opening ceremonies which 
were highlighted by the appearances of the Governor General's Foot Guards and Piper, 
the Maple leaf Brass Band, the Capital Chordettes and welcoming remarks by Jim 
Watson, the C.E.O. of the Canadian Tourism Authority. 

The following two days were filled with various meetings and training sessions, with 
large luncheons and a closing banquet. This was followed by entertainment with Dominic 
D' Arcy and some of his young talented performers. The Friday luncheon was chaired by 
our own president, Richard Munro. 

The committee was able to obtain some excellent speakers- Dr. Pierre Turgeon, Dr. Dan 
Offord and Laura Hannant. They were terrific! 

The convention was also a financial success, with a net profit of just over $1,000, a small 
portion of which comes back to the club. Whew!!! 

Previous conventions were noted for sessions not starting on time, not ending on time-
anything but on time. Our convention was punctual- a fact that was noted and appreciated 
by EC&C District Governor Milton Peach. 

Kudos must go to the Congress Centre. Their facilities were excellent and their staff were 
totally accommodating. I must also acknowledge the support of other Kiwanis Clubs in 
Divisions 12 & 13 without whose help the convention simply would not have been as 
successful. Also, thanks to Germaine Barr, Claire Patry and Lise Pichette in the EC&C 
District Office for their continuing support as well as the constant help from our own 
Joyce Stewart and Rita Harper. 
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I would be remiss if I did not recognize Ann Max for her initial work in setting up much 
of the committee. She was originally the co-chair of the event, but found it necessary to 

step down from the committee. 

If I've forgotten anyone, please accept my apology and thanks. It was a huge effort 

supported by a lot of people. 

Committee Members: 
Kate McLeod-Secretary and Taskmaster 
Frank Hegyi-Program 
Steve Weeks-Printing & Promotion 

Regards, 

Wayne Beaudoin, 
Chair 

Lorne & Betty Usher-Partners Program and Speakers 
Steve Tanner-Entertainment 
Sandra Lee - Treasurer 
Pierre Coderre - Kiwanis Club of Hull - Registration 
Penny Mount - Kiwanis Club of Carleton - Protocol. 
Ron Wing - Credentials. 
Ian Hendry -Youth Program. 
Jamie Johnson -Technical Support. 

Members at Large: 
David Fair, Ed Healey, Keith McGruer, Linda Clifford-Dashney & Norma Lamont-Kiwanis Club of 
Vanier, Harley Bloom Kiwanis Club of Orleans, 
Larry Ko\vlessar Lt. Governor Div.12, Paul McCumber Lt. Governor Div 13. 
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DREAM OF A LIFETIME 2001 - 2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa provided volunteers and sold tickets for the CHEO 2001-2002 
Dream of a Lifetime Lottery. Unlike recent years' experience, the lottery failed to achieve its 
targets, the lottery sales were only 76% of target. For its part Kiwanis performed well and while 
not achieving its target, did reach 93% of its target. 

A breakdown of sales by time and marketing channel is presented in the attached table. As in last 
year's lottery Kiwanis sold tickets at the first prize Dream Home and through the participation of 
Kiwanis members in selling tickets directly to their friends and business associates and at 
shopping centre sites. Selling at the Dream Home and the direct sales efforts of our own 
members continue to be the most effective channels. While the participation of members has 
slipped, it stabilized this year with 298 tickets being sold, down marginally from last year but still 
far below the 350 tickets sold in 1999-2000. 

The Kiwanianne Club of Ottawa provided volunteers for two weekends for which they were 
given an honorarium of $2,000. The Kiwanianne participation provides welcome relief for our 
members and, unlike in previous years, this year they required less supervision. The move to the 
Dream Home (as opposed to selling at a shopping centre) is a problem for the Kiwaniannes as 
many of their members are elderly and do not drive. A more productive future strategy may be to 
organize two weekend spots at Carlingwood and Billings Bridge for the Kiwaniannes to run 
parallel to our Dream Home sales. 

Finally, a real concern remains in the minds of the committee with regard to the future viability 
of Dream of a Lifetime. For the second year Dream of a Lifetime came under pressure from 
competing lotteries. This year there were no less than five competing big ticket lotteries selling 
into the market in direct competition. These lotteries offer a more attractive array of prizes and 
for the most part slightly better odds. We can not simply assume that the public will support us 
just "because it's for CHEO"; the majority of purchasers are in this for the prize. At the end of 
this year's lottery CHEO recognized that it needed to do something to upgrade the lottery and are 
looking at a slightly glitzier house. We need to monitor CHEO's progress in breathing new life 
into the Dream of a Lifetime Lottery and ask whether there is a future in it for the Kiwanis Club 
of Ottawa. 

Committee Members 
Vice President Janet Dodds 
Director 
Vice Chair 

Michael Findlay 
Patrick Flain 

Respectful1y submitted 

Jane Brady, Chair 

Kate McLeod 
Vic Reed 
Al1an Castledine 

17 



Weekend Of 

September 22 
29 

October 6 
13 
20 
27 

November 3 
10 
17 
24 

December 1 
Year End 

Sales by Channel 

Target Sales 

Percent of Target 
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Dream of a Lifetime 2001-2002 
Ticket Sales 

Sales Channel 

Dream Shopping Kiwanis 
House Centre Members 

40 
70 
80 5 
40 
40 
30 5 
40 10 
25 45 
17 35 
33 10 66 
11 10 38 

94 

426 20 298 

500 300 

Cumulative 
Sales 

40 
110 
195 
235 
275 
310 
360 
430 
482 
591 
650 
744 

744 

800 
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Duck Race Committee 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The IS th annual Kiwanis Duck Race for Tiny Hearts at CHEO was held May 11, 2002 at Hartwell 
Locks, Carleton University. I am pleased to report that we raised $ 106,300.00 for CHEO 
bringing our IS year total Duck Race contribution to $3,751,635.00. Total tickets sold this year 
through all avenues were S6,449 with Kiwanis selling 21,260 of those tickets. 

This year's event was approached with much enthusiasm and optimism. Kevin Keohane, an 
Kiwanis Club of Ottawa member, assumed his new position as with the CHEO Foundation as 
Vice-President, Development and Corporate Relations, and worked very closely with the Duck 
Race Committee towards our mutual goal of revitalizing this classic event. Many new or 
renewed initiatives were implemented such as the combining of the media launch and Kiwanis 
launch into one event held at the Rideau Carleton Race Track and Slots. We sold tickets at 
various malls over the course of the sales period. Advertising was intensified through 
newspapers and radio with the strong marketing of a Duck Ticket Hotline. 

Farm Boy was once again the presenting sponsor for the Duck Race. The value to Farm Boy was 
greatly enhanced through a very significant multi-media advertising program. This will 
strengthen our position in either signing Farm Boy on to a further multi year sponsorship or 
attracting a new partner. This was the Sth year of Farm Boy's S-year contract. There were many 
excellent companies involved in selling tickets once again and we thank them for their efforts. 

I would like to thank the local area Kiwanis Clubs for their continued support. The Kiwanis 
clubs involved this year were Bytown, Carleton, Nepean, Rideau, Riverside, Sage, Trillium, and 
Vanier. Also, we were very pleased to once again have the support of the Alex Dayton Seniors 
who once again sold tickets at the Carlingwood Mall with the exceptional help of Sandra Presley. 
Special mention is also due to the members of our Key Clubs at Sir Robert Borden High School, 
Lisgar Collegiate and Glebe High School 

Our Committee was made up of a dedicated and motivated group of Kiwanians, Key Clubbers 
and CHEO staff. The Duck Race committee has experienced a decline in membership over the 
past few years perhaps because it has been around for so long. This is a concern, as the workload 
becomes quite intense for a limited number of people. Also, we were quite often challenged with 
finding enough volunteers to staff the many ticket selling venues. 

At the outset of this ISth running of the Duck Race, we had high hopes that we would be able to 
manage a significant reversal of the downward trend in ticket sales over the past few years. 
While we did manage to increase ticket sales by about 3,000 over the previous year, the challenge 
of a significant reversal is still there. I am very proud of the efforts and dedication our committee 
exhibited over the course of this campaign and would like to thank all for their contributions. 

Committee Members 
Vice-Chair: Anthony McGlynn 
Vice-President Rick Barrigar 
Director: Chris Thompson 

Respectfully submitted, 
Brian Kloppenburg, Chair 

Ann Max 
Mike Zanon 

Eric Cosgrove 
Howard Lithwick 

Ken Nelson 
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Golf Tournament 2001-2002 

To: The President and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 

The 5th Annual 2002 Kiwanis Club of Ottawa "Children Priority One" Charity Golf Tournament 
extended the success achieved by the preceding four tournaments. As of November 14th

, 2002 the 
Tournament's Finance Sub-Committee Chair, Jim Wright reported a Net Income of $64,080 for this year's 
tournament! This was $2,780 more than the budgeted amount submitted to the Board in the fall of 2001. 
Through the first five years of this tournament, approximately $319,080 has been raised for various Kiwanis 
projects, and specifically those focused on children. 

At the outset, in light of the economic slowdown etc., the Committee was concerned about raising the 
revenues previously generated, but was confident that it could be done with equal parts of both hard and 
smart work. In the end, the Committee's perseverance, dedication, and hard work paid off with another 
succesfull tournament. It's no secret that a great deal of the Tournament's success is owed to the fact that 
there has been little turnover on the Committee since the beginning, allowing us to operate as much as 
possible on a systematic basis filling holes and making improvements where necessary. However, that is 
not to underestimate the valuable contributions made by other club members in terms of sponsorship, 
support, and tournament day volunteerism etc. Furthermore, it should also be noted that the Ottawa Hunt & 
Golf Club Limited deserves some thanks for being the host of our first five tournaments because there is not 
doubt that the venue helps us attract tournament sponsors & participants, which has a direct impact on the 
success of our fundraising. 

As in years past the main challenges will continue to be returning as many sponsors & participants as 
possible, and then trying to figure out how we might be able to increase revenues by making the tournament 
better and more attractive while working within the constraints of only 144 golfers, and 18 holes etc. 

The 2002 Tournament likely served to enhance the reputation of this tournament as one of the most 
successful and most enjoyable charity golf tournaments in the area, and set the stage nicely for 2003. In 
conclusion, thank you to everyone (Committee Members, Club Members, Sponsors, Participants, and 
Volunteers etc.) for helping to stage another top quality fundraiser and golf tournament. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jeremy D. Moore 
2002 Tournament Chair 

2001-2002 Organizing Committee 

Mike Moore (Vice-Chair) - Rick Barrigar (Vice-President) - Michel Podeszfinski (Director) 

John Law Jim Wright Clive Woolley Ken Birch 
Shawn Williams Tom Pullen Lynda Campbell Jeff Kyle 
Frank Tipper Barry N icholds John Norton Darrell Powell 
Bill Gosewitz Alan Smith John Harcourt Sharon Walsh 
Shirley Tomblin Ross Hadwen 
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INTERCLUB, SPORTS & SOCIAL COMMITTEE REPORT 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The committee's goals for the year were to provide as many social functions as possible 
including some ne\v functions for the membership of the club as well as to participate in as 
many Interclubs with other Kiwanis clubs in the Eastern Ontario region. 

In spite of the challenges for the Club after 9111 of 200 1, we were able to enjoy a Round 
Robin Dinner Tribute to outgoing President Ed Healey and to welcome incoming President 
Richard Munro. 

In addition to maintaining the minimum of one Interclub a month we were able to 
complement it with a few Charter Night functions at other clubs as well, specifically the new 
By town Club of Otta\va held at the Ottawa Hunt & Golf Club. 

November 200t-Kiwanis Christmas Party - 85 persons attended this event held at the 
Restaurant International of Algonquin College. A wonderful cocktail party took place 
followed by a superb dinner put on by the staff and culinary students of the Hotel & 
Restaurant progratn of the School of Hospitality, Algonquin College. 

February 2002-Cordon Bleu Dinner - 65 persons attended this wine & cheese reception 
held at Cordon Bleu School of Culinary Arts on Laurier Avenue (formerly Le Cercle 
Universitaire). The reception was followed by a cooking class instructed by the Master Chef 
of the Cordon Bleu School. This event was favourably received by those in attendance. 

Winter Skating Party-For the second year in a row, this event was cancelled due to 
inclement weather. Patrick Flain had attempted to secure the Governor General's skating 
rink, however the \veather was not conducive to skating. 

Mont Ste. Marie Ski Weekend-This event was carried off extremely well, given all the last 
minute changes and arrangements, however, approximately 40 persons were billeted along 
with the chalet owners who were extremely gracious in opening up their homes to us. A 
"Round Robin" dinner held at the homes of Alan Smith, Bob French and Gilles Langlois was 
extremely successful and much appreciated after a great day on the slopes. Special thanks to 
the sub-committee for helping to carry off the event. 

Members Golf Tournament-Held in June 2002 at Cedarhill G.C. Sub-con1mittee of Vice 
Chair Steve Moore and Ross McHardy & Doug McGregor did a great job. Attended by over 
90 golfers and well received by everyone. Weather co-operated and a great day was had by 
all. 

Family Splash Day July 2002-This first time event was organized solely by Ross McIntyre 
and proved to be an extremely popular and successful event. The Day was held at Mont 
Cascades attended by approximately 40 adults and children. The weather was HOT!!! And 
the water was great. Most of the kids (adults) had a ball, and everyone wants to repeat this 
event for next year!! 
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Interclub, Sports and Social- Page 2 

Lone Star Ranch Turnover Day-This great event was attended by over 80 members and 
friends to say au revoir to Richard Munro and welcome to new President Rick Barrigar. A 
western style "Fajita Feast" was offered along with music by "the Idiomatics", a 60's & 70's 
band, playing most of the tunes we know and love. Special mention to Lynda Campbell for 
organizing a "Member's Quiz/Puzzle" to break the ice and get to know others. 

Finally, I would like to personally thank all of our committee members who faithfully put in 
many hours of their personal time and commitment to helping to make our social events well 
attended and successful. Keep up the good work and let's have fun!!!! 

Also, I would personally like to thank Bill Cowie, Vice-President, and Lynda Campbell, 
Director, for their unstinting support and encouragement throughout the past year in helping 
this committee to achieve its goals and objectives of bringing great social events to the Club 
and it's members. 

Finally, I wanted to extend my condolences to Mrs. Doreen Greenwood on the loss of Stan 
Greenwood, our committee member and fellow Kiwanian, \vho may not have attended many 
Interclub meetings but always supported and encouraged myself and others to continue to put 
on great social events on behalf of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Phil Rossy, Chair 

Vice-Chair: 
Director: 
Vice-Pres. 

Steve Moore 
Lynda Campbell 
Bill Cowie 

Stan Greenwood 
Doug McGregor 
Stewart Watson 

Rob Thompson 
Sheri Farahani 
Patrick Flain 
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Ross McHardy 

Ross McIntyre 
Matt McGrath 
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LEGACY FOR LIFE COMMITTEE 2001-2002 

To: The President, Board of Directors & Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

In contrast to past years, the Committee did not undertake new initiatives for the purpose 
of attracting major donations to the Legacy for Life Fund. The emphasis was to follow 
up on ongoing activities and to develop new ideas for entrenching the role of the Legacy 
for Life Fund as a key funding mechanism for the Club in the long term. 

We are now partnered with the Community Foundation for future fund donations and 
money management. This was the most significant initiative for our committee in 2002. 

CLUB EVENTS 
Guest Speakers - 2002 
We had three of our committee chairs speak on The Legacy for Life and its long-term 
significance for their comn1ittee. The presentations were excellent and well received. 

MEMBERSHIP POLL 
A poll \vas conducted of all members regarding their knowledge of Legacy for Life and 
the role they wanted it to play in Ki\vanis. There was overwhelming support for Legacy 
for Life. There were also some helpful suggestions made. 

PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN LEGACY FOR LIFE & THE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
The Board \vas approached about partnering with The Community Foundation. It was 
generally felt that this would give us a higher profile and peace of mind for those wishing 
to make substantial contributions. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH MEDICAL FOUNDATION 
There still appears to be confusion over the role of Legacy for Life and The Medical 
Foundation. It is generally felt that the new partnership with The Community Foundation 
should make it easier to distinguish bet\veen the two. 

REVENUE AND DONATIONS 
The total donations this year were $1,900 with no expenses. These funds will be 
transferred to our current fund to be managed by the Community Foundation. 

CHAIR'S APPRECIATION 
I am grateful to all members for their patience & contributions through the year and a 
special thanks to Sally Burks who allowed us to use her firm's office for our meetings. 

Committee Members: 
Guy Milne, Vice-Chair 
Bill Cowie, Director 

Yours truly, 

Edward (Ted) Parsons 
Chair 

Sally Burks Robert Houle George Perrin 
Ian Hendry Anthony McGlynn 
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ANNUAJ.. REPORT 
2001-2002 

The objectives of the Kiwanis Club Of Ottawa Medical Foundation are to 
advance medical research and treatment in Ottawa by providing funding to those 
engaged in such work or funding assistance to organizations with similar 
objectives. 

The review process involves a committee member visiting with the 
person(s) making the request and completing the Investigative Report to help 
determine the appropriateness of the request. The request along with the 
reviewing member's recommendation is then discussed at a regular KMF 
committee meeting and, where required, the person submitting the request is 
invited to make a presentation to the Foundation to answer any questions. 

Typical requests from the medical research and treatment community in 
Ottawa range between $1,000 and $10,000. The budget the KMF committee has 
to work with annually represents the investment income from its capital 
investments, which stand at about $700,000. Accordingly, depending on the 
investment climate, the KMF annual budget ranges between $40,000 and 
$50,000. With annual fees to the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa for administration and 
annual audit fees of approximately $2,000, the balance is available to support 
community requests that meet the KMF requirements. This year's supported 
events were: 

Dr. Gail Graham from CHEO is conducting research on a 
condition entitled Hemochromatosis. This is a disease that 
results in an iron overload in the body, which if not treated 
immediately, will lead to death. The KMF supported her request 
of $5,000 to start and establish a database of people that have 
contracted the deadly virus. 
Dr. Dafoe of the University of Ottawa Heart Institute requested 
$5,000 to purchase a heart defibrillator that will be used off-site. 
Ottawa Hospital Dentistry Division submitted a request for 
$10,000 to purchase a special movable dentist chair that will be 
used by patients who would not receive treatment elsewhere in 
the city. 
University of Ottawa Heart Institute Prevention and 
Rehabilitation Centre, $5,000. The funds will be used to launch 
a research program in stress management with cardiac patients. 
The Salvation Army Grace Long Term Care Facility, $4,500. 
These funds will be used to fund the purchase of an air 
compressor to be used in the dentistry ward that serves the 
patients of the manor. 



Royal Ottawa Hospital, $10,000 to conduct a study that will look 
into the effects of depression and the chemical imbalance that 
arises in the body. 

The Kiwanis Medical Foundation and the Kiwanis Club received exposure 
to the community through a televised cheque presentation to the University of 
Ottawa Heart Institute, during the Heart Institute's annual telethon. 

The annual KMF luncheon was successful with Dr. Gail Graham speaking 
to the club about the effects of Hemochromatosis on the body and the 
population. 

Through the contacts of Jackie Holzman both Jackie and myself held a 
very positive meeting with Daniel Trudeau (Ottawa Life Sciences Council) and 
Robert Hanlon (Ottawa Hospital Research Institute) to restructure the committee 
to obtain better efficiencies both from a logistics and recognition standpoint. 

The nine KMF Trustees for the 2001-2002 year are listed in the years their 
terms expire (A trustee is appointed for a three year period): 

... 
David Oaubney George Perrin Allan Castledine 

Patrick Flain Paul Poggione Victor Ferreira 
Michel Podeszfinski Jim Wright Bob Kingham 

In closing, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to President 
Richard Munro. I would not have had this great opportunity to chair a great 
committee if it wasn't for his faith in my abilities. Last but not least all those on the 
Medical Foundation for their hard work and camaraderie throughout the year. My 
thanks would not be complete without recognizing the help of Joanna Muckle, 
Laura Johnson, Joyce Stewart and Rita Harper. 

Yours In Kiwanis, 

Paul Poggione 
Chair 2001-2002 
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MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2001- 2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Membership Committee was very active in its level of activities during the past year. As of 
October 1,2001, the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa had 224 active/senior members. By September 30, 
2002, we had 214 active/ senior members, together with 8 Honorary, Chaplain, Honorary Chaplain 
and Privileged members, making a total club membership of 222. 

Thirteen new members were introduced to the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa during the past year, namely: 
1. Doug McGregor 
2. William Shenkman 
3. Phil McNeely 
4. Donna Drummond 
5. Bruno DiChiara 
6. Siva Chidambaram 
7. Debra-Lynn lvlenard 
8. Guy Milne 
9. Doug Wilson 
10. Peter Nadeau 
11. Lee Storm 
12. Stephen Emond 
13. Victor Hanna 

Eighteen members resigned during the past year, namely: 

1. Ted Digel 
2. Sister Betty Ann I<insella 
3. Leslie Coates 
4. Jean Filion 
5 Reg Gilstorf 
6. Kathleen Holst 
7. Leo Labrie 
8. Krys Rudko 
9. Mike Chambers 
10. Rosanne Beamish 
11. Sister Maco Cassetta 
12. Lucille Rousseau 
13. Ron Petersen 
14. Claudia Coburn 
15. I\1ike Findlay 
16. I<en Birchall 
17. John Sabourin 
18. Todd Norton 
Club membership also declined with the loss of Stan Greenwood, who passed away on 
September 27, 2002. 
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The Committee held a very successful new members evening, hosted by President, Richard lv1unro 
and his gracious wife, Anna. It was an enjoyable social and educational event for the new I<iwanians 
in attendance and their partners. This continues to be an activity "\vhich should be repeated on a 
yearly basis. A very large thank you to Richard and Anna for their very warm hospitality. 

Sub-Committee on Membership and Friday Luncheons 
The Membership Committee struck a sub-committee under the leadership of David Fair. The 
sub-committee was comprised of members of the Membership Committee and other Kiwanians. 
The Committee met several times and examined the cost of membership in the Kiwanis Club, the 
cost and frequency of Friday luncheons and their impact upon existing Club membership levels 
and recruitment. After careful examination, David presented a detailed report to the Board of 
Directors of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, including recommendations. David Fair is thanked by 
the Committee for his leadership and direction on this subject. 

New Membership Interviews 
Murray McKeage and David Fair on behalf of the Committee, organized two meetings, including 
interviews and discussion with new members to determine their overall level of interest and 
integration in the Club. These new members were asked to discuss what they find appealing in the 
Club and any recommendations as to possible changes. These sessions were well attended and 
informative. The results of these meetings have been communicated to the Board of Directors. 

Induction Meetings 
The Membership Committee organized and presented two induction meetings at Friday luncheons 
throughout the year, as well as our Annual Legion of Honour Awards meeting chaired by Past 
President Ian Hendry. 

Summary 
The level of participation among membership of this Committee during the last year has been 
exemplary. All members of this Committee are to be thanked for their very substantial contribution 
in time, effort and interest. 

Committee Members: 

Vice-Chair: 
Vice-President: 

Myrna Beattie 
David Fair 
Barry Weatherdon 

Walter Boyce 
Janet Dodds 

Don Blakslee 
Rob IZalbfleisch 

Respectfully submitted, 

Paul IZane 
Chair 

Vince Calzonetti 
Les lv10rin 

Ross Christensen 
Marcia Saipe 
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MUSIC/ENTERTAINMENT COMMITTEE 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

For 2001-2002, the goals were to make an average of one musical presentation per 
month, keep rehearsals as short and effective as necessary and that the members of the 
Music and Entertainment Committee should have as much FUN as possible. In this 
regard, I believe we were generally successful with 13 presentations, only 6 rehearsals 
and committee members have indicated they had fun - I know I did! 

Following is a summary of the events in which the Music and Entertainment Committee 
participated: Nov 8 - A tribute to Jackie Holzman at St. Joe's. 

Nov 9 - Remembrance Day Luncheon 
Nov 23 - International President's Visit Luncheon 
Nov 27 - Kiwanis Christmas Dinner at Algonquin College 
Nov 30 - Luncheon - Jeremy Moore Baby Announcement 
Dec 7 - Diane Steumer "Newfie Songs"Luncheon 
Dec 8 - Parkinson's Society Christmas Party at the Nepean SportsPlex 
Dec 21 - Kiwanis Christmas Luncheon 
Mar 22 - St. Patrick's Day Luncheon 
May 10- Sol Max Tribute Luncheon 
May 24 - Kiwanis Golf Tournament Sponsor thank you Luncheon 
Aug 2 - ECC Convention Luncheon 
Sep 27 - Turnover Day Luncheon 

Special thanks go to a number of people who made my task so much easier. They 
include: my "daughter"Shirley Tomblin who was and is always available and helpful as 
only Shirley can do, Bob Gordon our talented pianist, Mark Max for his '''custom'' lyrics 
for three of our events, Sandra Presley (and husband Bill on occasion) who made 
rehearsal arrangements at the Alex Dayton Center, Dominic D' Arcy (and his kids) who 
was a big part of our Christmas Luncheon, Stephen Smye and Evelyn Greenberg (Jackie 
Holzman's sister) as guest pianists on occasion and finally Mike St. Louis who is always 
ready to jump in and help as required. 

At incoming President Rick Barrigar's request, I look forward to chairing this fun 
committee again next year. 

Committee Members 
Director Janet Dodds 
Myrna Beattie 
Dominic D'Arcy 
Larry Haffner 
Sue Menzies 
Conrad Stoltz 
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Wayne Beaudoin 
Bruno Di Chiara 
Buck Madden 
Mike Moore 
Shirley Tomblin 

Respectfully submitted 

E.R.(Bob) Kingham, Chair 

Sister Maco Cassetta Bob Vergette 
Ross Hadwen Val Wilkins 
Mark Max 
Mike St. Louis 
Lome Usher 
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Music & Entertainment Committee - Planning Month-by-Month. 

Day/Date Event 

Tue-Nov-06 Rehearsal 

Thu-Nov-08 St. Joe's 

Fri-Nov-09 K-Luncheon 
Westin Hotel 

Tue-Nov-20 Rehearsal 

Fri-Nov-23 K-Luncheon 

Tue-Nov-27 K-Xmas Party 

Fri-Nov-30 K-Luncheon 

Fri-Dec-07 K-Luncheon 

Sat-Dec-08 Parkinson's 

Fri-Dec-21 K-Luncheon 

Fri-Mar-15 K-Luncheon 

April 

Tue-Jul-30 Rehearsal 

Theme 

For Jackie & Luncheon 
and Rememberance Day 

Jackie Holtzman tribute 

Rememberance Day 

K-Luncheon-Nov 23 - Int'l Pres. 
K-Luncheon-Nov 30 - Moore baby 
K-Luncheon-Dec 7 - Diane Steumer 
Nov.27, Dec.8 and Dec.21. 

11 :30am impromptu rehearsal 
Sing/lead the Welcome Song 
International President Visit 
American/Canadian Anthem 

Algonquin College - Woodroffe 

Jackie Holtzman tribute 
Jeremy Moore baby song 

Diane Steumer 

Larry Haffner - Sportsplex 

Christmas Luncheon 

St. Patrick's Day 

Easter 

2002 Convention 

Suggested Songs 

Pianist, Evelyn Greenberg 

Mark Max writing special song 

War songs - examples: Amazing Grace, 
Pack up your troubles, White Cliffs of Dover 

Mark Max to write custom song 
Jerome Moore baby song 
I'se the b'y that builds the boat .. 
Christmas songs 

Mark Max and extras possible 
Mark Max to lead this piece. 
Mark Max to lead this piece. 

Music Ctee. to lead Xmas carol singing 

Mark Max to lead this piece 
Bob Kingham to lead this piece 

I'se the b'y that builds the boat. .. 

Christmas Songs 

Christmas, Santa Ken Miller 
Dominic D'Arcy & youth troop 

3 Irish songs 

3 Easter songs 

Introduction and presentation 

September 20 I 2002 

Comments 

Pianist, Evelyn Greenberg 

Pianist, Evelyn Greenberg 

All 

All 
All 
All 
All 

All 
All 
All 
All 

With those members present 

Pianist, Evelyn Greenberg 
Pianist, Bob Gordon 

All 

All 

All 

Shirley, Bob & All 

All 

Fri-Aug-02 K-Luncheon 2002 Convention Introduction and presentation All 

... 



MUSIC FESTIVAL COMMITTEE REPORT 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Music Festival continues to grow in leaps and bounds! Here are some highlights 
from this past year. 

The internet is a notable resource and information distribution point. The website, 
www.ottawakiwanismusicfestival.comis maintained regularly by our Managing Director, 
Gary Morton. The entire Syllabus and entry from is now on the web and as a result, 
attracts 150 visitors a day (55,000 per year). During Festival time we get almost 2000 
hits per day to the site. The internet has brought more efficiency at registration time to 
the Festival. 

We were very fortunate to include St. Paul University as a new venue this year. This was 
due in large part to our Club's long standing support of the University who in turn, felt 
that they could give back by supporting the Festival and offering their amphitheatre for 
speech arts and pop vocal performances. 

A new "Pop Vocal" category was created this year. It was restricted to one full day of 
performances; however, it was so successful that plans were soon underway to expand 
this category for 2003. 

The Provincial competition was held in Hamilton. Twenty-nine of our local winners 
went on to compete at this level and the results were fantastic. This region dominated 
first and second place finishes, a repeat performance from last year. I think that this 
outcome highlights the quality of music performed by young musicians in our region. 

The Kiwanis Music Festival, National Capital Region is a gem within our community. 
We should all be proud of the wok that is done on behalf of the children in this region. A 
special thanks to Ross Hadwen and Shirley Tomblin for their continued support and 
behind the scene work that you both do. 

Vice Chair Ross Hadwen 
Vice President Janet Dodds 
Director Derek Finley 

Shirley Tomblin 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Barb Perrin, Chair 
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OKTOBERFEST COMMITTEE REPORT 2002-2003 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The second annual Oktoberfest 2002 had many financial challenges placed in its path that 
differed from 2001. 

Lansdowne Park had gone to outsourcing its food and beverage to Armark. After many 
meetings with Lansdowne and Armark, it was determined with the beverage supplier, 
Lansdowne and Armark all taking a percentage of every transaction, our projected profit 
was too narrow. 

On May the 23 rd the Oktoberfest committee, with President Richard in attendance, 
unanimously voted to postpone Oktoberfest 2002. 

Committee Members 
Vice President Bill Cowie 
Director Val Wilkins 

Peter Charboneau 
Rob Kalbfleisch 

Bob Fisher 
Vic Reed 

Respectfully submitted, 

Steve Weeks, Chair 

Botho von Hampeln 
Gord Fleming 
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PARTNERS IN CARING COMMITTEE REPORT 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This was the fourth year for the Partners In Caring (PI C) fundraiser in partnership with 
the Ottawa Senators. Our prime beneficiary this year was Success By 6. We made a 
commitment to the Ottawa Senators Foundation of $25,000. The Ottawa Senators 
Foundation matched this commitment. This combined commitment of $50,000 was in 
turn matched by the Province of Ontario resulting in a total donation of $100,000 to the 
youth of Ontario. The Partners in Caring fundraiser raises its funds through the selling of 
Senator tickets to a designated PIC game, the selling of 50/50 tickets and other related 
initiatives such as an auction of Club Seats at our annual PIC luncheon. 

The breakdown of our gross and net revenue follows: 

• PIC March 24th Game (l ,036 tickets sold) 
• 50/50 Tickets (2 nights) 
• 10th Anniversary Program Sales 
• Auction of Club Seats @ PIC Luncheon 

o Total Gross Revenue 
o Less 50/50 Administrative Costs l 

Net Revenue 

$13,468.00 
14,855.70 

879.00 
1,625.00 

$30,827.00 
2,534.32 

$28,192.68 

1. The Administrative Costs were determined by the Ottawa Senators Foundation 
and were in keeping with the Foundation's Charter and practices. 

Our PIC Luncheon held on February 15, 2001 featured Max Keeping, representing 
Success BY 6, and Laurie Boschman, the first Captain of the Ottawa Senators. Elliot 
Melamed did an excellent job with our auction. 

I would like to thank all of the individuals who served on the committee, the ticket sellers 
and those who purchased tickets, attended the game and helped make the results a 
success. 

I hope that PIC 2002-2003 is a great success. I wish the new committee my best wishes. 

Director: 
Vice President: 

Mark Charron 
Tom Pullen 
Sharon Walsh 

32 

Bruce Brook 
Rick Barrigar 

Jeff Kyle 
Bill Siekierski 
Ron Wing 

Ross McHardy 
Tom Spence 
Jeff Spence 

Respectfully submitted 
Brian Quinn, Chair 

Ian Peddie 
Shirley Tomblin 
Devon Wingate 



PASSING THE TORCH CAMPAIGN COMMITTEE 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

An interested group of members proposed that the Club support the campaign to build a 
new Canadian War Museum. It was felt that the programs of the Club fit well with the 
objectives of the new museum to : REMEMBER, PRESERVE, EDUCATE. These 
include: remembering and recognizing former and currently serving members of the 
armed forces, with special attention being given to the veterans of war and peacekeeping 
operations; actively supporting sponsored youth programs involving high school Key 
Clubs, university Circle K Clubs, the 211 Air Cadet Squadron and the Governor 
General's Foot Guards Cadet Corps; and Young Children Priority One initiatives. 

The membership approved the initiative on May 31,2002 with an initial donation of 
$10,000. A further contribution of up to $40,000 was pledged which is to be raised over 
the next three years. A Memorandum of Understanding has been signed with the 
Passing the Torch Campaign and the Canadian War Museum. Two members have 
already pledged a total of $80,000. Further fundraising activities are planned: 

* An opportunity for all members to make donations: 

* A concert at CentrePointe Theatre featuring the Canadian Forces Central Band 

* A mess dinner for 300 at the Cartier Square Drill Hall 

An enthusiastic and committed group, together with the Kiwanis Club of Sage members, 
were and are engaged in this important work. 

Committee Members 
Ken Miller (Vice-Chair) 
Frank Cauley 
Donna Drummond 
Ed Healey 
Art Moody 
Bob Vergette 

Respectfully submitted, 

Allan Castledine, Chair 

Ross Christensen 
Jack Gordon 
Matt McGrath 
Paul Nemeth 
Kent Wilkinson 

Aubrey de Young 
Bryan Healey 
Buck Madden 
Ted Parsons 
Doug Wilson 

Ex Officio Members: Jim Anderson, Jackie Holzman, George Perrin, Lome Smith 
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Programme Committee 2001-2002 

To: The President, members of the Board of Directors, and members of the club. 

Attached please find a summary of all of the programs and actions of the committee. 
Minutes of all meetings are available on request. To summarize: 

We had 35 guest speakers and upon reviewing our minutes, the committee was generally 
very pleased with the quality of their presentations. Throughout the year, 5 Kiwanians 
took on the role of guest speaker and the comments of our committee were 'usually our 
best speakers come from within our club.' There were 4 Fridays when we did not have a 
meeting. The remaining 8 Fridays were: our annual & two, semi-annual meetings, the 
family Christmas party, turn-over day, Legion of Honour day, Convention and the visit of 
the International President. 
Throughout the year, Kiwanis committees who requested a designated meeting to 
promote their issues/activities were urged to provide a superior speaker and a tightly 
scripted agenda. The committee feels that we were successful in this matter. 

The attendance is listed on the program summary. 

The committee did not exceed its annual budget of $7,000.00 

At every monthly meeting throughout the year, our committee discussed certain changes 
that would impact on our membership and ultimately on our attendance. At our 
November meeting, we discussed the idea of discontinuing the singing the Happy 
Birthday song. It was voted upon and passed 19-2. We also recommended discontinuing 
all meetings in August. These two recommendations were subsequently submitted and 
endorsed by the Board of Directors to be presented at the annual general meeting but 
were not discussed at the meeting nor implemented. 

Our committee was asked to make a presentation to the semi-annual meeting. We spent a 
full meeting and narrowed our presentation to 5 issues which are as follows: 

1. The quality of the overall program and attendance is directly effected by: time of 
the meeting (noon), location (Chateau), frequency of meetings, day of the week, 
cost of parking and the cost of the Chateau. These should be examined. 

2. There are currently 62 senior members and 32 members on leave of absence. 
3. The dress code should be revisited. The Board of Directors is required to enforce 

the dress code. 
4. We recOlnmend a sub-committee of three (3) members to establish a survey, 

interview active and inactive members and perform exit interviews. 
5. It was felt that the club does not welcome change. 

At our last committee meeting in September, each committee member submitted a list of 
ideas for discussion. A long meeting resulted in a series of straw votes. It was felt that 
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the results should be passed on to the next committee and to the Board of Directors. 
They are: 

1. How many favour prepaid luncheons as opposed to 'pay as you go' ... the vote was 
8 in favour, 4 against and 2 abstentions. 

2. How many favour changing our prepaid luncheons in some fonn ... the vote was 
13 in favour, 1 against. 

3. How many were in favour of a different frequency, day of the week or time of the 
meeting for the period of July and August. ... 
For weekly meetings, 9 \-vere in favour of canceling all or part of the summer 
program vs. 4 against and one abstention. 
For meeting every Friday at the Chateau, 5 were in favour of remaining at the 
Chateau vs. 9 who \-vould like to try other locations during the summer. 
F or holding breakfast meetings vs. lunch meetings or some combination thereof, 8 
were in favour of breakfast in the summer vs. 2 against and 4 abstentions. 

4. Dealing with dress code ... 
Those in favour of jacket, shirt & tie for men for 10 months (no casual Friday) ... 8 
were in favour and 4 against and 2 abstentions 
Those in favour of business casual in July & August.. 1 0 were in favour with 1 
abstention. 

5. The number of people sitting at the head table was discussed with the idea of 
reducing its size except for special occasions. The follow sizes were voted upon: 
8 people 8 in favour vs. 6 against 
10 people 6 in favour vs. 6 against and 2 abstentions 
12 people 3 in favour vs. 9 against and 2 abstentions 

6. Songs and singing ... .it \-vas felt that instead of the 'guest book reader' picking on 
someone in the audience to go to the microphone to sing the welcome and 
birthday songs, it would be preferable to have 2 members of the music committee 
perfonn this duty each meeting. 

7. We again discussed the birthday song ... 6 are in favour of discontinuing singing 
the song vs. 5 who are in favour of keeping it and 3 abstentions. 

8. There is strong feeling that Kiwanians should remain at their place during the 
welcome song but a vote \-vas not held. 

I would like to thank the following committee members for their time and help this year. 

Jane Brady Bill Cowie, Bruce Brooks, Don Blakslee, John Callan, Diane 
Craig, Wayne French, Larry Haffner, Ian Hendry, Jackie Holzman, Don Keyes, Mike 
Lundy, Mark Max, Matt McGrath, Hassa Mirchandani, Art Moody, Les Morin, Ed 
Mulkins, Ted Parsons, Bill Siekierski, Lorne Usher (keeper of the minutes), Ron Wing, 
Clive Woolley and Mike Zanon. 

Respectively submitted 

Peter Charboneau 
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Guarant'di i / 

Date Billed Chateau Active SRI .... •. ·.i· Key 

amoun Laurier TOTAL MembE Hon>i< ... .... Club 

10105/01 125 125 122 76 10 10 21 2 1 3 Gordon Ritchie-Canada's Economic Programme 

10/12/01 106 90 106 87 11 5 1 3 Gail Logan-The Business of Influence 

10/19/01 130 130 117 77 11 26 1 3 Harold Redekopp, CBC 

10/26/01 148 130 148 95 15 30 5 1 3 Stockwell Day - Canadian Alliance 

11/02/01 120 120 111 88 9 10 2 3 Mike Nemesvary-Ist Quadraplegic to Drive around 

11/09/01 120 120 111 76 6 12 13 2 3 General Paul Manson-Remebering the Past 

11/16/01 120 120 107 77 15 12 1 3 Jim Watson, CanadianTourism 

11/23/01 180 170 180 72 11 65 16 12 2 3 Kiwanis International President's Visit 

11/30/01 95 95 81 67 6 2 2 2 3 Paul Darby-Conference Brd of Canada 

12/07/01 106 90 106 75 14 15 1 2 Diane Steumer 

12/14/01 109 105 109 77 13 13 3 1 3 Michel Juneau-Katsuya 

12/21/01 160 160 157 54 7 95 o 2 Family Christmas Party 

12/28/01 o o o no luncheon no meeting 

1104102 o o o no luncheon no meeting 

1/11/02 99 100 108 87 12 6 1 3 Christian Pauls-German Ambassador 

1/18/02 99 100 81 61 7 8 4 o 2 Legacy for Life Presentation 

1/25/02 420 420 410 103 25 279 1 3 Ride with the Renagades-Michael Lysko CFL 

2/01/02 100 100 78 61 8 6 1 3 Carole Stephenson 

2/08/02 100 100 89 78 9 1 1 Dennis T rimbell 

2/15/02 100 100 72 64 6 1 1 Partners In Caring - Max Keeping 

2/22/02 100 100 74 68 4 1 1 Dr. Ron Vorton - Ottawa Hospital "Stem Cells ... 

3/01/02 100 100 82 82 o o 0 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - No guests 

3/08/02 100 100 88 85 1 2 Michael O'Byrne CJOH - "Heart Inst. The Inside Story" 

3/15/02 100 100 85 70 11 1 3 Circle K - Kelly Doell 

3/22/02 100 100 86 37 49 o 0 DUCK RACE LAUNCH DINNER-RIDEAU CARLEl 

3/29/02 90 90 62 56 3 1 2 MAUNDY THURSDAY - Bishop Peter Coffin 

4/05/02 88 80 88 79 5 1 2 Mike Shaughnessy, Ken Nelson, Jack Warner on Securit 

4/12/02 Y ouville Ctr 107 75 7 22 1 2 YOUVILLE CENTRE - Sister Betty Ann Kinsella 

4/19/02 103 100 103 71 11 10 7 1 3 Alan Simmons - "Kids, Dogs, Eagles and Ducks 

4/26/02 279 270 279 59 4 41 170 3 2 RED SHIELD LUNCHEON - US Ambassador 

5/03/02 102 100 102 71 12 15 1 3 David Bradley - Canadian Trucking Alliance 

5/10/02 138 140 138 76 28 32 o 2 Legion of Honour 1 Hall of Fame 

5/17/02 129 120 129 56 3 2 65 1 o 2 KEY CLUB LUNCHEON 

5/24/02 100 100 98 74 10 11 2 DUC 6 GOLF 1 2 Golf Luncheon - Claude Turgeon (Boys Club) 

5/31/02 166 150 166 68 9 15 2 69 1 2 Air Cadet Luncheon-Jason Krait 

6/07/02 100 100 81 66 7 4 6(medical 1 3 Medical Foundation-Dr.Gail Graham 

6/14/02 81 80 81 64 6 10 4 1 3 Gerry Turcotte, Communications Research Ctr 

6/21/02 81 80 81 64 6 8 3 3 Denise Chong, "The Truth About Memory" 

6/28/02 76 76 74 51 11 9 1 3 Bill Siekierski, BREAKFAST at Capone's 

7/05/02 74 74 74 56 6 9 1 2 Harvey Friesen, Bearskin Airlines 

7/12/02 63 60 63 54 7 2 Semi-Annual Business Meeting 

7/19/02 80 80 69 55 5 4 2 3 John Manion, "How Politics gets in the way of Good Public Mgmt 

7/26102 70 70 61 53 6 2 Semi-Annual Business Meeting - "Round Two" 

8/02/02 Congress Ctr 64 53 8 2 EC&C convention - President's Luncheon 

8/09/02 70 70 58 46 6 2 3 Bob Davis - First Air 

8/16/02 74 70 74 60 5 4 2 2 Julie Francisco-'Who You Are Makes A Difference 

8/23/02 o o o no luncheon o NO Meeting - No Round Table 

8/30/02 o o o no luncheon o NO Meeting - No Round Table 

9/06/02 103 80 103 75 9 8 2 5 1 3 Michel Juneau Katsuya from Northgate 

9/13/02 80 80 77 64 3 5 2 2 Dr. Bruce Jackson, Director of the Eye Institute 

9/20102 86 80 86 70 8 4 1 3 Dr. Raphael Saginur, Ottawa Hospital 

9/27/02 105 80 105 80 15 7 3 Turnover Day - President Richard and Board goodbye 

TOTALS 5275 5105 5158 3313 392 885 12 123 19 170 83 o 47 114 TOTALS 

Programme Statistics Oct 01-Sep 02 
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! Senior Citizens / Hands-On ... Page 2 

Spring Tulip Tour 
Forty-two Seniors from the Silver Heights Tenants Association were picked up and dropped off at their 
front door by a tour bus driver who gave them a delightful tour of Ottawa's Finest Tulip Display 
throughout the city. A Special Thank You to Don Blakeslee for arranging this tour Free Of Charge. 

Boat Tour 
On a beautiful day in July, 48 Happy Seniors participated in this successful event which included a bus 
ride to Gananoque & a boat cruise. Bob Fisher welcomed all aboard on behalf of Kiwanis. Another 
Great Arrangement made via Don Blakeslee. This project ended up costing our Club a grand total of only 
$250.00. 

Shepherds of Good Hope 
On June 8, 2002, 20 Kiwanians, Friends & Family under the Project Managers (Steve Moore & Vice 
Project Manager Wayne French) spent 7 hours painting rooms at Shepherds of Good Hope. The supplies 
and lunch were provided by Shepherds. A Wonderful Kiwanis Hands On Project. 

The Mayors Senior Breakfast 
On Canada Day the Mayor hosted a breakfast for Seniors (Free of charge). This was held at the Aberdeen 
Pavillion. Kiwanians, Family and Friends assisted with the pouring of the coffee etc. Approximately 5000 
Seniors attended the breakfast. Another Great Contribution of Time & Effort by Kiwanians. 

Tapestry House 
On August 20, 2002, Gord Fleming and Ross Hadwen, Two or our hardest working Committee members 
spent 8 hours each installing floor tiles in the kitchen and bathroom in this home for caregivers who spend 
some of their spare time visiting the home. 

Seniors Tea 
On August 22, 2002 approximately 300 Seniors attended a delightful afternoon at the Chateau Laurier 
listening & dancing to the music of the great Ottawa Grey Jazz Band while munching on crumpets, scones, 
cakes, cookies, party sandwiches along with assorted teas & coffees. 
A special presentation was also made to Mr. Hugh Burwell who devotes lots of his time to helping other 
Seniors. It was a very touching ceremony & a very successful tea. Another wonderful Kiwanis Project. A 
Very Special Thank You to RIDEAU PLACE ON THE RIVER for donating $3000.00 which offset a good 
portion of our expenses. 

In conclusion, it was a tremendous 1 st Seniors / Hands-On Committee Year. I feel very fortunate that I 
had such great support from my Vice Chair Bob Fisher as well as the Members of the Committee. I pass 
on the reins to Eric Cosgrove & Doug Wilson knowing full well that all the great things this committee 
does will continue. 

Vice-President Janet Dodds 
Director Sam Bhargava 

Myrna Beattie 
Bob Fisher 
Ross Hadwen 
Steve Moore 
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Don Blakslee 
Gord Flem ing 
Bill Harsh 
Peter Patafie 

Sincerely, 

Robert (Bob) Horlick 
Chairman Seniors Hands On 2001-2002 

Ross Christensen 
Wayne French 
Allan Macintyre 
Maurice Powers 

Eric Cosgrove 
Bill Gosewitz 
Kevin McGrath 
Steve Weeks 



Spiritual Aims and International Affairs 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This committee currently covers two distinct areas for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa: 

Firstly, we promote the first Objective of Kiwanis International which is "To Give Primacy to the 
Human and Spiritual rather than the Material Values of Life" 

Secondly, we investigate and support international projects. 

Achievements over the past vear: 

- Co-ordinated the monthly schedule of Chaplains for our Friday luncheons 
- Provided support for the Aktion Club 
- Provided Peter Coffin, Bishop of Ottawa of the Anglican Church to speak at the Easter lunch 

- Co-ordinated assistance to the Salvation Army Christn1as Kettle Appeal 
- Sponsored 12 children @ $300 per child for the year through the Salvation Army's Foster 

Children Program 
- Provided four Bursaries of $1 ,000 each to theological students attending St. Paul University 
- Obtained General Paul Manson as a Remembrance Day speaker 
- Prepared for distribution a Directory of Churches, Synagogues and Mosques in the Ottawa area 

after 5 years of \vork. 

The Committee Members must be thanked for their \vork over the last year and a special mention 
must be given to Michael Liang who almost single-handedly updated the Directory. 

Respectfully submitted by Sally H. Burks as acting Chair following Sister Maco Cassetta's 
retirement as Chair 

Vice Chair: Sally Burks Directors: Myrna Beattie and Bill Cowie 

Members: Father Bill More Major Cliff Hollman Michael Liang 
Harold Moore (Aktion Club) 
Thomas Assaly (Aktion Club) 
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Sponsored Youth - Circle K 2001-2002 

To: The President and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Our Committee had another busy year working with our local Sponsored Youth-Circle K 
Clubs. An early visit by the Circle K Lieutenant Governor sparked the interest of the two 
Clubs. The Carleton University Club continued to build on the momentum from the past 
year and both Clubs were active in fundraising and community service activities. The 
Clubs held regular weekly meetings at which at least one of our Sponsored Youth -
Circle K committee members was present. The Clubs ran their own meetings with 
minimal assistance from the Circle K committee member. 

A new initiative was begun this year towards chartering a ne\v club at St. Paul's 
University. Frank Hegyi has spearheaded this initiative and will continue to work 
towards that goal in the upcoming year. 

Community service activities which the Circle K Clubs have participated in over the past 
year include: reading to children at the on campus daycare raffle for CHEO, Key 
Club mentoring, meal service at the Alex Dayton Centre, sponsorship of a foster child, 
volunteering at the Shepherd's of Good Hope, purchase and delivery of Christmas 
hampers for needy families and volunteering at the Y ouville Centre. 

Social events included a bowling date together with local Circle K Clubs, a Sponsored 
Youth Party with International President, Brian Kunar, participation in the Champions for 
Children Trivia Night and an end of year get together at the Royal Oak Pub. 

March 15, 2002 saw the two Circle K Clubs leading our Friday lunch at the Chateau 
Laurier. The guest speaker was Kelly Doell, a local sports psychologist \vho shared his 
experiences with top-level athletes and the use of psychology in maxinlizing results. This 
past year also saw a greater degree of involvement and cooperation between our two 
Circle K Clubs and together with the Kiwanis Club itself. Attendance at our Kiwanis 
luncheons by Circle K members was significantly increased over past years. 

I would like to thank all of the members of the Committee for their dedication, support 
and hard work in helping to guide our Circle K members and build future Kiwanians and 
community leaders. 

Committee members: 
Vice-Chair Glen Vaillancourt 
Vice-President Rick Barrigar 
Director Chris Thompson 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Harold J. Feder 
Chair 

Howard Lithwick 
Paul Poggione 
Tom Assaly 



Sponsored Youth - Key Club Committee 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Our club continues to support four very active Key Clubs at Sir Robert Borden, Nepean, 
Lisgar and Glebe. They range in size from 15 to 40 members. 

Fund-raising events included sales of baked goods, canned drinks, hot chocolate, car 
washes, cookbooks and doing coat checks, and UNICEF. Some schools raised money for 
the White ribbon and Red ribbon campaigns. Canadian Tire money is collected and used 
to buy toys at Christmas. Sir Robert Borden collected $1,650 this year! Nepean had a 
spaghetti dinner which raised $1,000. Nepean also did a World Vision 30 hour famine 
fundraiser which raised hundreds of dollars. 

Duck race tickets were sold by all schools. Sir Robert Borden managed to sell the 1000 
tickets required to earn $500. for their club. 

A couple clubs help out on a regular basis at nearby schools \vith after school day care 
help or reading. 

A brief list of the year's activities: 

Trivia night early November - they work as score keepers and runners 

Luncheon with International President Brian Cunat on Nov. 23 rd 
- 17 Key Clubbers 

attended at the Chateau Laurier 

Sunday Social with Brian Cunat was held Nov. 25 th and 5 of our Key Clubbers met 
with Brian Cunat, his wife, other Kiwanis officials and kids from other area Key Clubs 
for pop and pizza on Grey Cup Sunday. 

Bowling Social was held in February, 17 attended 

Annual Convention took place in Valleyfield, Quebec April 5 - ih. We had 31 attend. 
They all really enjoyed the whole experience. 

Duck Race on May 11 th - they help run the Kids Zone where they run fun games 

Annual Key Club Luncheon on May 1 i h was hosted by Glebe this year. It was very 
\vell received by the Kiwanis members 

Presentation of Plaques in May to t\VO Teacher Advisors for 10 years of service and 
dedication to the Key Clubs at Glebe and Lisgar 
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Year End Social was held at the Lone Star restaurant on June 13th
. About 60 very 

enthusiastic Key Clubbers attended. It was really an enjoyable event for the kids. 

The Key Club experience is invaluable for the students who are active in their clubs. The 
fund-raising they have done this year is phenomenal. They also benefit from the 
leadership skills they acquire, the sense of community service work, the friendships they 
make and many other positives. 

Thanks to all the Key Club committee members who are so conscientious about their 
work with the Key Clubs and the students. It is this participation, encouragement, time 
and effort that help make all the activity listed above possible. It was a pleasure to chair 
this committee and I will be staying on for another year. 

Vice-Chair: 
Vice-President: 
Director: 

Rosanne Beamish 
Rocco D'Angelo 
Paul Poggi one 
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Rosanne Beamish 
Rick Barrigar 
Mike St. Louis 

Sandra Lee 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jan Mansfield, Chair 

Ross McIntyre 
Guy Bourbonniere 

Mike Flint 
Howard Lithwick 



Young Children - Priority One Committee 2001-2002 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This has been a tremendously successful year for the YCPO committee. The Committee has raised 
an outstanding sum of money from the sale of educational videos. The Committee has maintained 
commitments to the local community including: Connaught School; Hearing and Sight Screening; 
and the new read-a-thon project. Most importantly, the Committee has a thriving and committed 
membership. 

The largest single event for YCPO was the completion of our previous commitment with the 
Ontario Government for the production and distribution of "Precious Minds: Nurturing Literacy in 
the Early Years" video. In total this partnership resulted in the dissemination of 250,000 videos to 
new parents over a two year period. In summary, this educational initiative succeeded beyond 
expectations. The hard work of Howard Whittaker, Derek Finley, Don Keyes and Sam Bhargava 
led to this success. 

In addition, these video sales were the single largest fund raiser for our club this year. The 
committee is continuing to explore similar opportunities that use the special skills in our club to 
raise money; further video initiatives are possible. 

The Committee is closely followed by the board including the active involvement of Sam Bhargava 
and Derek Finley. The board receives direct reports from the fiscal oversight committee that is 
responsible for the review and approval of funds expended and raised through video sales. 

The committee struggled in defining its role within the club. This struggle is representative of the 
vitality in our club as we continually seek both immediate relevancy to the community and long 
term support for Kiwanis goals. The Committee has provided detailed presentations to the board on 
governance issues as these affect the YCPO committee. The Committee's suggestions focused on 
criteria based evaluation for the consideration, adoption and provision of community programs. A 
similar proposal has been forwarded by the strategic planning committee. Official response from 
the board to this report is outstanding. 

The YCPO committee has adopted the criteria based evaluation model for its most recent exciting 
project, planned for the April 2003, the Kiwanis read-a-thon. 

The Committee strongly recommends the increase of intra-club communications in order to 
continue to build this c01nmittee momentum and relevance in our club and to the comlnunity at 
large. 

Also of note, was the recognition by the Ottawa Citizen of our clubs work in literacy: we were 
noted as one of the top 5 initiatives in our community. Committee member, Ross Hadwen, was also 
recognized by the United Way for our clubs continuing \vork with Connaught Elementary School. 
This committee is thriving and has great opportunities for the coming year. 

Respectfully submitted 
Harold Geller, Chair 
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YOUTH & COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 2001-2002 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Over the past year the Youth & Community Services committee investigated over 65 
requests that came in from the Community. As a result over $30,000 has been spent by 
the Committee. As a result of Ken Birch's own fundraising activities (running putting 
contests at various golf tournaments) $500.00 was donated to the Committee's budget. 

Listed below are several examples of how the Kiwanis funds assisted members of our 
community: 

* 

* 

* 

* 

Over $10,000 was given to the YMCA to support needy children attend various 
camps during the summer months. 

Over $850.00 provided 30 single mothers, who attend parenting courses at The 
Bethany Hope Centre, a Christmas gift. 

$750.00 helped a single mom attend Algonquin College 

$400.00 went to purchase a keyboard for the Silver Heights Tenants Association 

I would like to thank all the members of the Committee for their hard work and to all 
Kiwanians who helped raise money to support the many requests. I would also like to 
thank the Kiwanis office for all their support. 

Vice Chair John Willins 
Vice President Rick Barrigar 

John Norton 
Bob Littlemore 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Neil McDonald, Chair 

Tom Beveridge 
Marcia Saipe 

Ian Peddie 
Rob Tripp 
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Consolidated Financial Statements of 

KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, 
INCORPORATED 

Year ended September 30,2002 



KPMG LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Suite 1000 

45 O'Connor Street 

Ottawa ON K1 P 1 A4 

Canada 

AUDITORS· REPORT 

To the Members of Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Incorporated 

Telephone (613) 560-0011 

Telefax (613) 560-2896 

www.kpmg.ca 

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, 
Incorporated as at September 30, 2002 and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Club's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

The Club derives revenue from membership fees, donations and various fundraising activities, the 
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of 
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Club and we were not able to 
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to such sources of revenue, excess (deficiency) 
of revenue over expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 
necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenue sources 
referred to in the preceding paragraph, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Club as at September 30, 2002 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles. As required by the Canada Corporations Act, we report that, in our opinion, these 
principles have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
Club taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1, 2, and 3 is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 
November 14, 2002 

•••• 
KPMGup. a Canadian owned limited liability pannershlp established under the laws of Ontario. 
IS the Canadian member film of KPMG Internalional. a SWISS nonoperaling association 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 2001 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash $ 267,534 $ 268,533 
Accounts receivable 104,957 82,936 
Inventories 6,300 
Prepaid expenses 3,538 32,291 
Due from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 3,190 

385,519 383,760 

Investments (note 2) 66,700 66,700 

Capital assets (note 4) 14,855 11,803 

$ 467,074 $ 462,263 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 119,112 $ 80,256 
Deferred revenue 44,401 17,825 
Due to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 1,634 

163,513 99,715 

Net assets: 
Investment in capital assets 14,855 11,803 
Internally restricted for "Never Shake a Baby" project 

(note 3) 22,049 14,821 
Internally restricted for "Precious Minds" project (note 3) 105,788 35,998 
Restricted for endowment purposes (note 3) 5,000 5,000 
Unrestricted 155,869 294,926 

303,561 362,548 
Commitments (note 5) 

$ 467,074 $ 462,263 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

Director 

Director 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 2001 

Revenue: 
Fundraising (schedule 1) $ 888,884 $ 663,201 
KCO Non-Profit 54 41 
Membership fees 56,461 60,835 
Recovery of administration costs 

Duck race 45,000 30,000 
Kiwanis Medical Foundation 2,000 2,000 

Other 6,458 5,729 

998,857 761,806 

Expenses: 
Fundraising (schedule 1) 553,935 287,882 
KCO Non-Profit 55 15 
EC&C District convention promotion 12,836 
Administration 267,692 244,509 

834,518 532,406 

Contributions 223,326 206,047 

1,057,844 738,453 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (58,987) $ 23,353 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended September 30, 2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

Internally Internally 
restricted for restricted for 

Investment in "Never Shake a "Precious Minds" 
capital assets Unrestricted Baby" project Project 

(Schedule 1) (Schedule 1) 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 11,803 $ 294,926 $ 14,821 $ 35,998 $ 

Purchase of capital assets 17,921 (17,921 ) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenue over expenses (136,005) 7,228 69,790 

Proceeds on disposal of 
capital assets (3,415) 3,415 

Loss on disposal of capital 
assets (2,741) 2,741 

Amortization of capital assets (8,713) 8,713 

Net assets, end of year $ 14,855 $ 155,869 $ 22,049 $ 105,788 $ 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2002 2001 

Externally 
restricted for 
endowment 

purposes Total Total 

5,000 $ 362,548 $ 339,195 

(58,987) 23,353 

5,000 $ 303,561 $ 362,548 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 2001 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (58,987) $ 23,353 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 8,713 5,016 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 2,741 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (22,021 ) 32,770 
Increase in inventories (6,300) 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 28,753 (25,522) 
Increase in due from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical 

Foundation (3,190) 
Increase (decrease) in due to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Medical Foundation (1,634) 1,067 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

and accrued liabilities 38,856 (48,067) 
Increase {decrease1 in deferred revenue 26,576 {3, 1551 

13,507 (14,538) 

Investments: 
Purchase of capital assets (17,921) (6,032) 
Purchase of investments (29,487) 
Proceeds on disposal of investments 13,287 
Proceeds on of assets 3,415 

(14,506) (22,232) 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (999) (36,770) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 268,533 305,303 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 267,534 $ 268,533 

The Club considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30,2002 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Incorporated (the "Club") is a non-profit service organization within the 
meaning of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is exempt from income taxes. The Club was 
chartered as a member of Kiwanis International in 1917. Its principal activities include providing 
services and financial support to various community organizations and projects. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Consolidated financial statements: 

The consolidated financial statements of the Club include the assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and net assets of the Kiwanis Foundation and KCO Non-Profit Corporation . Kiwanis 
Foundation was established in 1967 as a registered charity with the aim of providing social 
assistance to a variety of community organizations and projects. KCO Non-Profit Corporation 
was established in 1997 with the objective of assisting in the fight against the Iodine Deficiency 
Disorder. 

(b) Inventories: 

Inventories consist of video cassettes held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. 

(c) Investments: 

Investments are carried at cost. 

(d) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donation revenue which is 
recorded on a cash basis. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net 
assets. Grants in excess of related costs for the period are reflected as deferred revenue. 

(e) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided on the declining balance basis 
using the following annual rates: 

Asset 

Software 
Computer 
Photocopier equipment 
Furniture 

Rate 

50% 
30% 
30% 
20% 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2002 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Donated services: 

The work of the Club is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Since these 
services are not normally purchased by the Club and because of the difficulty of determining 
their fair value, donated services are not recognized in these financial statements. 

(g) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Investments: 

Investments consist of Ontario Savings Bonds with interest rates of 5.50% and 5.75% to 7%, 
maturing in June 2004 and June 2005 respectively. The market value of these bonds was $72,545 
at September 30, 2002. 

These investments were purchased from proceeds from the Legacy for Life Fund. 

3. Restrictions on net assets: 

Of the net assets restricted for endowment purposes, $5,000 (2001 - $5,000) is subject to externally 
imposed restrictions, stipulating that the principal be maintained intact. Investment income is to be 
used by the Directors of the Club for Club welfare purposes. 

The net assets of the "Never Shake a Baby" video project, $22,049 (2001 - $14,821), are subject to 
internally imposed restrictions, stipulating that the amount be used to provide funding for future 
activity related to the project. 

The net assets of the "Precious Minds" video project, $105,788 (2001 - $35,998), are subject to 
internally imposed restrictions, stipulating the amount be used for projects related to children. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2002 

4. Capital assets: 

2002 2001 

Accumulated Net book Net book 

Cost amortization value value 

Software $ 3,327 $ 2,057 $ 1,270 $ 263 
Computer 11,837 4,200 7,637 10,093 
Photocopier equipment 4,637 4,383 254 363 
Furniture 10,234 4,540 5,694 1,084 

$ 30,035 $ 15,180 $ 14,855 $ 11,803 

Cost and accumulated amortization at September 30, 2001 amounted to $32,217 and $20,414 
respectively. 

5. Commitments: 

(a) The Club has promised to raise $50,000 for the "Passing the Torch" campaign. The Club has 
already raised $10,000 towards its goal during the current year, and is thus undertaking to raise 
an additional $40,000 by the year 2005. 

(b) The Club leases premises under an operating lease that expires in February 2003. Rental 
payments to expiry total $3,308. The annual payment is $7,938. 

6. Related party transaction: 

During the year, approximately $25,000 (2001 - $23,000) was paid to a director of the Club for 
project management services . 

./ 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2002 

7. Deferred gift: 

The Club has been designated as the beneficiary of life insurance policies. As at September 30, 
2002, the estimated amount of insurance in force for which the Organization has been designated 
as beneficiary totals approximately $117,500 (2001 - $117,500) . Premiums paid during the year by 
the insured were approximately $2,300 (2001 - $2,300). These amounts are not recorded in these 
financial statements. 

8. Comparative figures: 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement 
presentation adopted in the current year. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Schedule 1 - Fundraising 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

Proceeds Expenses 2002 2001 

Bon appetit $ 41,940 $ 5,857 $ 36,083 $ 34,924 
Dream of a Lifetime 31,000 2,038 28,962 28,968 
Duck Race 113,803 21,029 92,774 111,026 
Golf tournament 100,651 38,126 62,525 66,106 
Ottawa Senators 28,687 28,687 35,699 
Weekly raffle 9,383 9,383 2,892 
Oktoberiest 58,441 53,354 5,087 
Entertainment books 2,337 875 1,462 150 
Legacy for life 1,909 10 1,899 1,905 
Key Club and Circle K 4,445 13,560 (9,115) (7,032) 
Senior Citizens 5,710 10,526 (4,816) (1 ,617) 
Young Children Priority 

One: 
Precious Minds 472,512 402,722 69,790 35,998 
Never Shake a Baby 13,066 5,838 7,228 5,035 
Hearing-screening 5,000 5,000 
Emergent Literacy 

Video Project 20,980 
Other 7,309 

New York Disaster Fund 1,885 
Nokia Brier 31,091 

$ 888,884 $ 553,935 $ 334,949 $ 375,319 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Schedule 2 - Administration Expense 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 2001 

Amortization of capital assets $ 8,713 $ 5,016 
Bookkeeping 19,696 5,580 
Bad debts 13,892 10,178 
Bank charges 2,346 1,243 
Conventions: 

International 4,709 7,869 
District 954 5,532 

Computer service and support 6,582 7,289 
Credit card service charges 1,701 1,712 
Kiwanis supplies 1,459 676 
Liability insurance 7,954 6,957 
Lieutenant Governor's costs 3,996 4,302 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 2,741 
Magazine subscription 3,465 3,671 
Membership Committee 2,874 3,919 
Membership dues: 

International 11,187 10,035 
District 8,235 7,657 

Miscellaneous 4,862 34,912 
Music Committee 741 197 
Postage and courier charges 7,578 9,619 
President's honorarium 2,248 2,000 
Printing, stationery and office 20,649 19,532 
Professional fees 8,955 6,300 
Programme Committee 6,911 7,533 
Public Relations Committee 5,985 
Rent and municipal taxes 9,936 8,008 
Roster 5,076 4,393 
Salaries and benefits 110,470 76,267 
Weekly luncheon, net (16,223) (5,888) 

$ 267,692 $ 244,509 

r 

, 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA, INCORPORATED 
Schedule 3 - Contributions 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 2001 

Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario - Duck Race $ 100,232 $ 104,252 
Music Festival 6,050 8,500 
Spiritual Aims and International Affairs 11,021 11,309 
Youth and Community Services 42,104 17,624 
Air cadets 19,104 19,436 
Partners in caring 25,000 25,000 
Kiwanis of Bytown 2,000 
PaSSing the Torch 10,000 
Aktion Club 4,003 
Reading is fundamental/Hearing-screening 3,812 
New York Disaster Relief Fund 2,500 
Community funding - Hands On 828 
Other/Lottery - Champions of Children 6,598 
Ottawa School Board 10,000 

$ 223,326 $ 206,047 
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KPMG LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 1000 

45 O'Connor Street 

Ottawa ON Kl P 1 A4 

Canada 

Telephone (613) 560-001 1 

T elefax (613) 560-2896 

www.kpmg.ca 

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE KIWANIS 
CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL FOUNDATION 

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical 

Foundation as at September 30, 2002 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets 

and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with 

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 

the overall financial statement presentation. 

In common with many charitable organizations, the Foundation derives revenue from donations, 

the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our 
verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the 

organization and we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to 
such sources of revenue, excess of revenue over expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 

necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenues 
referred to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Foundation as at September 30, 2002 and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 

November 14, 2002 

•••• KPMG 1lP. a Canadian owned limited liability pannership established under the laws of Ontario. 
IS the Canadian membel flfm of KPMG International. a SWISS nonoperating associat ion. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Position 

September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash $ 64,377 
Accrued interest receivable 2,145 
Due from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

66,522 

Investments (note 2) 642,443 

$ 708,965 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,605 
Due to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 3,190 

4,795 

Net assets: 
Internally restricted 150,000 
Restricted for endowment purposes (note 3) 5,000 
Unrestricted 549,170 

704,170 

$ 708,965 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board of Trustees: 

Trustee 

Trustee 

2001 

$ 46,178 
1,272 
1,634 

49,084 

646,605 

$ 695,689 

$ 1,500 

1,500 

150,000 
5,000 

539,189 
694,189 

$ 695,689 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Operations 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

Revenue: 
Donations 
Investment 

Expenses: 
Medical research grants : 

University of Ottawa 
Ottawa Hospital General Campus 
Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario 
Ottawa Heart Institute Foundation 
Young Children Priority One 
Ottawa Health Research Institute 

Administration fee - Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Incorporated 
Audit 
Miscellaneous 

Excess of revenue over expenses 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2002 

$ 3,723 
35,845 
39,568 

6,000 
10,000 
5,000 
5,000 

2,000 
1,500 

87 
29,587 

$ 9,981 

2001 

$ 8,247 
38,910 
47,157 

6,000 
5,000 
4,500 
6,000 
2,000 
8,500 
2,000 
1,500 
1,420 

36,920 

$ 10,237 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

Restricted for 
Internally endowment 
restricted purposes Unrestricted 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 150,000 $ 5,000 $ 539,189 $ 

Excess of revenue over 
expenses 9,981 

Net assets, end of year $ 150,000 $ 5,000 $ 549,170 $ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Total Total 
2002 2001 

694,189 $ 683,952 

9,981 10,237 

704,170 $ 694,189 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30,2002, with comparative figures for 2001 

2002 

Cash provided (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 9,981 
Change in non-cash operating working capital 4,056 

14,037 

Investments: 
Purchase of investments (50,000) 
Proceeds on disposal of investments 54,162 

4,162 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,199 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 46,178 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 64,377 

2001 

$ 10,237 
(3,600) 
6,637 

(296,406) 
287,718 

(8,688) 

(2,051 ) 

48,229 

$ 46,178 

The Foundation considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with maturities of 
three months or less. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30,2002 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation is a registered charitable organization. The 

Foundation was established in 1980 with a mandate to advance medical treatment and research 

and to provide assistance to other organizations with similar objects. The net assets of the 

Foundation must be maintained at a minimum of $150,000. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Investments: 

Investments are carried at cost. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donations which are recorded 

as revenue only when received. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases 

in net assets. 

(c) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 

expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Investments: 

Mortgage backed securities: 
$25,299, 5.875%, maturing May 1, 2002 
$20,000, 8%, maturing August 1, 2002 
$25,000, 8.375%, maturing August 1, 2002 
$100,000, 5%, maturing December 1, 2002 
$25,000, 5%, maturing February 1, 2003 

$ 

2002 

96,500 
22,787 

119,287 

2001 

$ 19,534 
17,908 

842 
97,221 
23,183 

158,688 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements, page 2 

Year ended September 30,2002 

2. Investments (continued): 

2002 

Mortgage backed securities (continued): 
Balance carried forward $ 119,287 
$25,000, 8.125%, maturing July 1, 2003 2,081 
$20,000, 5.65%, maturing September 1, 2003 14,121 
$20,000, 5.65%, maturing September 1, 2003 23,571 
$27,896, 5.625%, maturing January 1,2004 12,830 
$116,000, 4.875%, maturing February 1, 2004 108,465 
$35,000, 7%, maturing March 1, 2004 3,117 
$15,000, 7.25%, maturing July 1, 2004 2,320 
$38,000, 5.625%, maturing November 1, 2004 37,719 
$26,000, 5.55%, maturing June 1, 2005 25,031 
$30,000, 7.625%, maturing June 1, 2006 28,299 
$25,000, 5.625%, maturing June 1, 2006 22,850 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing August 1, 2006 50,504 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing August 1, 2009 47,360 

497,555 

Province of Ontario bonds: 
4.620%, maturing May 6, 2004 25,000 

Ontario savings bonds: 
4.750%, maturing June 21, 2003 25,000 
3.00%, maturing June 21, 2004 20,000 
5.5%, maturing June 21, 2004 25,000 

Ontario Hydro bond: 
7.75%, maturing November 3, 2005 24,888 

Province of Manitoba bond: 
4.8%, maturing December 15, 2002 25,000 

Total investments $ 642,443 

Market value $ 656,593 

3. Restrictions on net assets: 

2001 

$ 158,688 
2,827 

16,902 
24,027 
15,522 

110,362 
5,240 
3,331 

38,074 
25,647 
28,653 
23,392 
50,943 
48,109 

551,717 

25,000 
20,000 
25,000 

24,888 

$ 646,605 

$ 659,998 

The $5,000 of net assets restricted for endowment purposes is subject to externally imposed 

restrictions stipulating that this amount be maintained permanently. Investment income on the 

$5,000 is to be used by the Trustees of the Foundation for medical research. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements, page 3 

Year ended September 30,2002 

4. Deferred gift: 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa has been designated as the owner of a term life insurance policy. 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation has been designated as the beneficiary of this 

policy. As at September 30, 2002, the estimated amount of insurance in force is $604,000 (2001 -
$600,000). 

Premiums paid during the year by the insured were approximately $10,500 (2001 - $8,000). 

These amounts are not recorded in these financial statements. 

--
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1 Summary Schedule. 

2 IZiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc 
f------- - ..... +.-----+----...1.----------------------''-----_+_----_1 

Combined Statement of Revenue and Expense 
r-- ---.- -----+--------'---------------------------...:"------''----------1 

3 

4 2002-03 Budget AND 2001-02 Budget and Actual (audited) 
5 
6 --_.-
7 2002-03 2001-02 2001-02 
8 Revenue Actual 

.. --.-- - .. ---+-- ------+-----+-------+----'-'----!-_+_----t---""""---t------t-----____I Budget Budget 

9 
A 10 Fundraising Events Proceeds (Schedule 1) . __ ._._--- 577,880 397,200 437,109 a 

0 0 11 KCO Non-Profit Corporation 

12 .Mem bership Dues 57,780 60,000 56,461 
13 Recover\' of Admin Costs - Duck Race 

--_.- ._ .. _ .. ---------------_ .. _--- 45,000 45,000 45,000 
14 Recoven' of I\dmin Costs - Medical Found 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Weekly 3,000 3,500 11,712 
16 \X1 eekly raffles / fines .... - 5,000 2,800 9,140 
17 YCPO Videos 

.---- --- ----_. -.- . __ .----'----_-->._----
0 117,000 13,066 * 

18 YCPO Video - Precious 11inds Ont Gov't 0 499,000 472,512 * 
0 32,419 

20 Total Revenue 
I--- ------. - -... 

---------+----+----+----+-+-----+-----+-------+----\ 

.-------'--------'-------f__----f---L----___+----_+_-------ic------__f 

690,660 1,158,919 1,047,000 

_F.'-md Raising EX"penses --- (Schedule 1) 138,480 B 126,550 169,779 b 

24 ;\llowance for Bad Debt 5,000 0 13,892 

0 0 0 25 KCO Non-Profit Corportation 
1--------------.. ------L.-----_+_---___f----___f---1-----+-----_+_------+------f 

26 Administrative Expenses (Schedule 2) 
27 Committee Support (Schedule 2) 

Expenses (Schedule 2) 

174,950 
15,000 
35,852 

C 

G 
D 

197,350 216,279 c 

15,000 16,571 g 
34,900 51,019 d 

29 YCPO Videos (SBS & PM) 
I------.--------'--------L.------"-----_+_-----_+_f--------t-------'---f------"---+--------j 85,000 5,838 * 

30 YCPO Videos Precious Minds. Onto Gov't 387,000 402,722 * 
31 Convention 2002 Advance 0 32,419 0 
32 Total Expenses 

"33-. I 
369,282 878,219 876,100 

34 Net Revenue Before Contributions 

35 ! 
__ L-___ ---1-____ L-___ 

321,378 280,700 170,900 

36 Contributions and Revenue Sharing (Schedule 1) ------.. (430,695) E (240,050) (247,412) e 

37 Community Services Projects (Schedule 1) 17,000 F (2,5001 17,525 f 

38 Contributions/Community Svcs. Projects 

39 I 

(413,695) (242,550) (229,88TI. 

___ ----.---.1---------"--------'------.... ----.. -+-----
40 SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR I· I ....... -""+_-----I 

42 Surplus (Deficit), Beginning i 
,--.-.-. --.. - -.---.. , '* End 

.. _____ L __ . _______ -+-____ ___+-----

(92,317) 38,150 (58,987) 

303,561 373,448 362,548 

211,244 411,598 303,561 

I 
46 ! 2002-03 2001-02 2001-02 

47 * Restricted funds Budget Budget Actual 
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Schedule 1 Funciraising Activities 
2002-03 Budget and 2001-02 Actuals (AUDITED) 

I I 
--------------------------------------2002-03 Budge t ------------------------------- " f ------------------------------2001-02 Ac tuals (Una udi ted) --------------------------

Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net III Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net 2001-02 

Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions (20% GA) Revenue III Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue Budget Net 

MAJOR FUND RAISING I 
Bon Appetit- Silent Auction 55,000 10,000 45,000 45,000 II 41,940 5,857 36,083 36,083 38,700 

Dream of a Lifetime (800 tickets) 80,000 49,000 31,000 31,000 I: 80,000 49,038 30,962 (2,000) K.Bytown 28,962 29,000 

Duck Race (15,000 tickets) 150,000 10,000 140,000 (140,000) CHEO 0 II 113,803 21,029 92,774 (100,232) CHEO (7,458) 0 

Golf Tournament 100,000 40,000 60,000 60,000 II 100,651 38,126 62,525 62,525 61,300 

Ottawa Senators Partners In Caring 35,000 2,500 32,500 (32,500) BI!YJ CI"b/YCP( 0<1 1 28,687 28,687 (25,000) Prov Govt 3,687 0 

Oktoberfest 0 0 0 o z II 58,441 53,354 5,087 5,087 18,000 

Passing The Torch 100,000 5,000 95,000 (95,000) War MflStllm 0 ;1 1 0 (10,000) (10,000) (10,000 

Presidents Ball 2003 45,000 20,000 25,000 (25,000) Bqys Club OJ 1,500 

Subtotal 565,000 136,500 428,500 (292,500) 136,000 III 423,522 168,904 256,118 (137,232) 118,886 137,000 

I 
OTHER Fundraising : ,i I 

Entertainment Books (60 2,880 1,980 900 900 II 2,337 875 1,462 1,462 150 ! 

Donations 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 II 2,102 2,102 2,102 2,000 

Other Income 8,000 0 8,000 8,000 I 9,148 9,148 9,148 8,000 ' 
I Subtotal 

-
10,900 III 12,880 1,980 10,900 0 13,587 875 12,712 0 12,712 10,150, 

'-' 

Fund Raising TOTAL 577,880 138,480 439,400 (292,500) 146,900 III 437,109 169,779 268,830 (137,232) 131,598 147,150 I 

=---1 - --
A B b 

--r-
Revenue Sharing/ 1:1 : Revenue Sharing/ 

I 

COMMUNITY SERVICE PROJECTS Contributions ' I i Contributions 

Cadets - Air 0 (17,700) (17,700) I 0 (19,104) (19,104) (20,0001 

Cadets - GG FG 0 (8,850) {8,850) Iq 0 0 0 

Circle K (75 students) 0 (9,000) (9,000) I 0 (1,117) (1,117) (7,5001 

Key Club 0 (9,145) (9,145) I: 4,445 4,445 (12,443) (7,998) (9,000\ 

Legacy for Life 10,000 2,000 8,000 8,0001.' 1,909 10 1,899 1,899 (1,5001 

Misc / Board Contingency 1,000 (1,000) (1,000)7 1' 471 471 471 (1,000\ 

Music Festival 0 (6,000) (6,000) I 0 (6,050) (6,050) (6,050\ 

Senior Citizens/Hands-On 0 (12,000) (12,000) , 5,710 5,710 (10,526) (4,816) (8,000\ 

Spiritul Aim s / Aktion Club 0 (15,OOO} (15,000) I; 0 (15,024) (15,024) (13,OOO} 

Ways & Means 0 0 Ii 0 0 0 0 

YCPO - SBS videos 10,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 ' I ! 0 0 

YCPO - Precious Minds ,"ideas 15,000 10,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 

YCPO - RIF and other initiati,"es 0 (20,500) (20,500) I 5,000 5,000 (3,812) 1,188 (5,500} 

Youth & Services 0 (40,000) (40,000) I 0 (42,1011 (42,104) (47,500\ 

Community Service Proj TOTAL 35,000 18,000 17,000 (138, 195) (121,195) 111 17,535 10 17,525 (110,180) (92,655) (119,050\ 
F I f I 

Net Proceeds Available (430,695) E 25,705 f (247,412) 1 e 38,943 28,100 

t' 
-

Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net LI Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net 2001-02 

I Revenue Expenses Contributions Revenue fU Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue Budl!;et Net 
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Schedule 2 

:Ki\varus of Ottawa Inc 

I Administrative Expenses 

2002-03 BU9get AND 2001-02 Budget and Actual (audited) 
2002-03 2001-02 2001-02 

Administrative and Support Costs Budget Budget Actual 
Annual Audit and Professional Fees 8,000 7,000 8,955 
Bank Charges 500 500 36 
Credit Card Charges 3,000 3,000 4,011 
GST Expense 2,000 2,800 0 
Depreciation 2,000 8,000 8,713 
Loss of Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 2,741 
Directors and Officers Insurance 3,000 2,800 2,718 
Office Insurance 1,800 1,600 1,058 
Office - 7,000 16,500 8,500 
Office - Comeuter Software I 1,000 2,000 5,245 
Office-Computer Service & Support i 2,000 2,000 6,582 
Office - Equipment Leasing I 3,000 4,500 4,970 
Telephone / Fax 500 500 434 
Internet --1 1,000 1,100 1,500 
Board Contingency/Miscellaneous + 1,000 0 2,054 
Po::;tage and Courier I 7,000 7,500 7,578 
President's Expense Account ! 3,000 2,000 2,248 
Rent & Taxes 10,000 11,000 9,936 
Parking -staff 4,000 2,300 3,365 
Roster 3,500 5,500 5,076 
Salary - Office Manager 45,000 47,000 21,658 
Salary - Administrative Secretary 45,000 0 20,628 
Salary - Administrative Assistant 0 33,000 13,339 

Workplace Safety Insurance 500 1,000 315 
CPP Deductions 5,000 5,550 2,946 
Employment Insurance 3,500 4,550 1,572 
Payroll Service Chrgs 650 650 498 
Benefits 

I 
I 6,000 5,200 937 

Payroll Expenses 0 0 22,486 
Temporary Assistance 0 2,400 26,090 
Staff Training 2,000 2,400 394 
Bookkeeping I 4,000 15,000 19,696 

Total 174,950 C 197,350 216,279 

Club Committees 
Membership and Attendance 4,000 3,000 2,874 
Music / Entertainment 1,000 1,000 741 
lnterclub Committee 1,000 0 60 
Programme Committee 

i 
5,000 7,000 6,911 

Public Relations Committee 4,000 4,000 5,985 
Total 15,000 G 15,000 16,571 
I I 

_Kiwanis Direct EXEenses 
Dist Convention(2002 Ottawa/2003 SvdneyNS) 3,000 1,500 954 
Inti Convention (2002 Louisiana/2003 Indianapolis 4,000 4,000 4,709 
EC&C 2002 District Convention Promotion 0 0 12,836 
Kiwanis supplies 1,000 1,000 1,459 
Lt. Governor Expenses (2003 214 x $18) 3,852 4,100 3,996 
Members Dues - International 9,500 10,300 11,187 
Members Dues - District I -1 7,800 8,000 8,235 
Kiwani::; Liabili!): Insurance I 4,200 3,000 4,178 
Kiwanis magazine I I 2,500 3,000 3,465 

Total 35,852 D 34,900 51,019 
I 

Total Administrative Expenses 225,802 247,250 283,869 

I 
T\.lwcllll::> ,uu,-u.) r , ... AL2 


